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N OTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS 


Notice is hereby given that the EIGHTY SIXTH ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING of the Company will be held at the 

Registered Office at No.27/ 1 032, Panampilly Nagar, Kochi, 

Ernakulam - 682 036 at 11.00A.M. on Saturday, the 30th 

day of September, 2023 to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. 	 To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial 

Statements (including Consolidated Financial Statements) 

of the company for the year ended 31 st March, 2023 

and the Reports of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. 	 To declare Final Dividend on Equity Shares. 

3. 	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. R.Venugopalan 

(DIN: 00704982) who retires by rotation and is eligible 

for re-appointment. 

4. 	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. A.D.Bopana 

(DIN: 00576066) who retires by rotation and is eligible 

for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

5. 	 Adoption of new set of Articles ofAssociation of the 

company in line with Companies Act, 2013 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without 

modification(s)' the following resolution as Special 

Resolution 

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions ofSection 5 

and 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with 

the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 and all other 

applicable provisions, if any, ofthe Act (including any statutory 

modification(s) or re-enactment thereoffor the time being 

in force), consent of the Members of the Company be and is 

hereby accorded to adopt new set ofArticles ofAssociation of 

the Company in consonance with Companies Act, 2013, in 

substitution and to the entire exclusion ofthe existing Articles 

ofAssociation of the Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board ofDirectors of 

the Company be and is hereby au thorized to do all such acts, 

deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, proper, 

expedient, required or incidental thereto, in this regard and 

take such actions and give such directions as they may consider 

necessary or desirable to give effect to this Resolution. 

On Behalfof the Board 

Ajit Thomas 
Chennai Chairman 
09.08.2023 DIN: 00018691 

Registered Office: 

No.2711032, Panampilly Nagar 

Kochi, Ernakulam - 682 036 

Tel: 0484 - 2315312 Fax: 0484 - 2312541 

E-mail: secmidland@avtplantations.co. in 

CrN : U25191 KL1937PLC000691 

Notes: 

1. 	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is 

entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on a 

poll instead ofhimselfand the proxy need not be a 
member of the Company. The instrument 
appointing the proxy should, however, be deposited 

at the registered office of the Company not less than 

48 hours before the commencement ofthe meeting. 

2. 	 A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not 

exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 
than ten percent of the total share capital of the 

Company carrying voting rights. A member holding 
more than ten per cent of the total share capital of the 

Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single 
person as proxy and such person shall not act as proxy 
for any other person or shareholder. 

3. 	 The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details relating 
to Special Business at the meeting is annexed hereto . 

4. 	 The relevant details pursuant to the Secretarial Standard 

on General Meetings issued by the Institute ofCompany 
Secretaries of India ill respect of Directors seeking 

re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting is 
annexed. 

5. 	 Corporate members intending to send their authorized 

representatives to attend the meeting are requested to 
send to the Company a certified copy of the board 
resolution authorizing their representative to attend and 

vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

mailto:secmidland@avtplantations.co


6. 	 The Company has appointed Mis Cameo Corporate 
Services Chennai as its Ree:istrar & Share 

,md rlpr.~e"~ 

with CDSL and NSDL. Shareholders intending to hold 
their shares in electronic form may their 
depositOly for dematerialisation ofshares. 
Shareholders their physical shares for effecting 

to Mis Cameo 

Services Limited. 


7. 	 The ofMembers and 
remain dosed 24th J'-IJLUlH\)'LI 

ptember, 2023, (both days 

8. 	 The voting rights ofmembers shall be in 
their shares of the equity share 
Company as on Cut-offdate 23rd 

9. 	 The final dividend as recommended by the Board, if 
at this will be paid withill 30 

from the date to those members whose names 
appear in the Ree:ister ofMembers on that date. 

10. 

Mis. Cameo Corporate Services Limited, Subramanian 
Building, No.1, Club House Road, Chennai- 600 002 
in the case ofphysical and to their 

ill case ofdematerialized shares. 

11. Members of the have not yet "po-ietPI'"rll 

updated e-mail address are 
update their e-mail address wirh 

and Share Transfer Ae:ent, Mis. Cameo 
. Services 'Subramanian Building', 

No.1, Club House Chennai 600 002, 
Email:- investor@cameoindia.com or with their 
Depository to enable the Company to send 
all communications. 

12. 	The 2020 had made the dividend declared 
from 01 st April taxable in the hands of 

where the dividend exceeds Rs.50001- in 
a financial year. This has created a requirement for rhe 
investors to submit Form in case 
like to be from deduction of tax from their 
dividend. Form 15 GI 15 H can be downloaded from 
the web link https:11 investors.cameoindia.com to avail 
the and email toinvestor@cameoindia.com. 
There is also a provision to Form 15G/15H in 
the weblink viz. 
provided the Company's 

Mis Cameo Corom'ate Services Limited. 

13. Members are requested to furnish to the 

account details in the case ofphysical and to 

their respective in case of 

dematted so that the payment ofdividend when 

made National Electronic Clearing Service 

(NECS), National Electronic Fund Transfer 

Direct Credit, Dividend Warrants etc., can be made 

without delay. 

To prevent fraudulent members are advised 

to exercise due diligence and the of 

any in address or demise member as soon 

as Members are also advised not to leave their 

demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement 

of holdings should be obtained from the concerned 

and holdings should be verified. 

14. Shareholders who have multiple folios in identical names 

or in names in tbe same are to 

intimate to the these folios, to enable the 

to consolidate all such into one 
folio. 

15. Shareholders of the 

facility the nomination 

which can be obtained from the Registered Office ofthe 

or from the company's Rel?:istrar & Share 

Transfer Agen t. 

16. Pursuant to 	 ofSection 124 of the 

Act, 2013, the Company has transferred on due 

the or unclaimed Final Dividend for the financial 

year 2014-2015 and Interim Dividends for the financial 
year 2015-20 16 to the Investor Education & Protection 

Fund (IEPF) constituted the Central Government. 

Interim Dividend declared for the financial year 20 16­

2017 over a period of 7 
years is liable to be transferred to the above fund during 

the year and no claim shall lie againsr the or 
the said Fund) once Ie is transfetred. Shareholders are 

advised to claim from the Company the 

dividends, if any, for the said year remaining 

before are transferred to the Fund. 

Pursuant to Investor Education and Protection Fund 

(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
2017 ("Rules") notified by the 
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the is required to transfer all shares in respect 

of which dividend has not been or claimed for 

seven consecutive years to the IEPF The 

shareholders are to claim the 

failing which their shares shall 

be transferred to the demat account ofthe IEPF Authority 

as per Section 124 of the Act, 2013 read 

with applicable IEPF Rules. 

to submit attested copy ofPAN 
surviving legal 

and in case of deletion ofname of 

deceased shareholder(s)! transmission ofshares, in respect 

of shares held in along with necessary 

documents at the time of lodgement of request for 

transmission. vide 

notification dated 10th September, 2018, mandated 

that transfer ofsecurities of unlisted 

shall be carried our in dematerialised form with 

effect from 2nd October, 2018. Accordingly, members 

who have not yet converted their holdings into electronic 

demat form may do so immediately for their own interest. 

18. Documems referred to in the Notice shall be open for 

19. 

the members at the office of the 

(Monday to Friday) 

except holidays, upto the date of 

with provisions of Section 108 of the 

Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the 

Meeting by electronic means and the business 

may be transacted through Services provided 

by Cent!';)] Depository Services Limited 

The facility for either through electronic 

paper shall also be made 

TT1Pprinrr who have not 

be able to exercise their ricin at the 

who have cast their vore 

and members attending the 

cast their vote by remote 

to the 


shall not be entitled to cast their vote 


may also attend the 

20. 	THE INSTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS 
FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AREAS UNDER: 

1 	: Access CDSLlNSDL 
system in case of individual 

shareholders holding shares in demat mod e. 

Step 2 Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case 
of shareholders shares in 

mode and non-individual shareholders in 
dematmode. 

(i) 	 The begins on 27th 2023 
at 9 A.M. and ends on 29th 2023 

at 5 P.M. During this shareholders' of the 
either in form or 

The e-voting module shaH be disabled 

on the cut-off date (record 
2023 may cast vote 

by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

Shareholders who have voted prior to the 
date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue. 

servICe 
to listed 

entities in India. This necessitates registration on 
variolls ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs 
and the shareholders. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting 
process, pursuant to a pub lie it has 
been decided to enable to all the demat 
account holders, by way ofa login 

their demat accounts! websites of 
Depositories! Demat account 
holders would be able to cast theif vote without 

process. 

of individual 
shareholders holding shares in demat mode. 

Individual shareholders securities in demat 
their demat account 

maintained with and 

uepUSllUlIt:S CDSLlNSDL 

system in case 

Shareholders are advised to 

mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts 
in order to access e-Voting 

with the not 

seamless authentication but also 
I,tiril"'l-:lrtna in 
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method for e-Voting for Individual 

shareholders holding securities in Demar mode is 

given below: 

Type of 
shareholders 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Dematmode 
with CDSL 

Method 

J) Users who have 
can 

and 
be made available [0 reach 
without any further authentication. 
users to to Easi I Easiest are 

to visit cds! website 
'!,ww.ccisjindia.com and click on 10£)11 icon 

2) 

& New 

is In progress per the information 
provided by company. the 
cvoting oprion, the user will be able to see 

3) 

4) 

: page 
for 

authenticate the llser 
OTP on registered Mobile & 

Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 

Arler sucwsful 

be able to see the 


Service Providers. 


is ill progress and 
access the system 

Individual I I) 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

tory 

2) 

3) 

click on Owner" icon under 
which is available under 'IDeAS' 

You will have 
After 

be able to 
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve 
User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 
and Password ootion available at 
abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Indiyidual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode any technical issues 
related to login Depository i.e. CDSL and 
NSDL 

Login Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demar 
mode with CDSL 

Individual Shareholders 
holdillgsecurities ill Demar 
mode with NSDL 

Step 2: 

mode non~individual shareholders in 
dcmatmode. 

Login method for Remote e-Voting for Physical 
shareholders and shareholders other than 
individual holding in Demat form. 

1) The shareholders should log on to the 
website www.evotingindia.com. 

2) Click on "Shareholders" module. 

3) Now enter your User ID 

a. ForCDSL: 6 ID, 

b. 	 For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed 
8 Digits Client 

c. 	 Shareholders shares in Physical Form 
should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 

4) 	 Next enter the as displayed and 
Clickon Login. 

5) If you are 
logged on I!'iHlUld.LUlll and voted on 

of any company, then your 
M«Wr.,·rl is to be used. 

6) 	 If you are a user follow the steps 
below: 

For shareholders and other than 
individual shareholders holding shares in Demat. 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as 
well as physical shareholders) 

• 	Shareholders who have not updated 
their PAN with the Company/ 

Dividend 
Bank 
Details 
or 
Dare of 
Birt~ wit~ the depository or company, please 
(DOB) enter the member id I folio number ill 

the Dividend Bank details field. 

After 

PAN 
by Income Tax Departmcm 

these details dick on 

"SUBMIT' tab. 

(vii) 	 Shareholders shares in physical form will 

then direcdy reach the selection screen. 

However, shareholders holding shares in demat 

form wiil now reach 'Password Creation' menu 

wherein they are to mandatorily enter 

their login in the new password field. 

Kindly note that this is to be also used 

by the demat holders for resolutions of 

are eligible to 

vote, provided that company opts for 

through CDSL It is strongly 

recommended not to share your password with 

any other person and take utmost care to keep 

your password confidential. 

(viii) For shareholders shares in physical form, 

the details can be used for e~voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 

Click on the EVSN forThe Midland Rubber & 

Produce Co. on which you choose to vote. 

http:www.evotingindia.com


On the voting page, you will see "RESOLUTION 

DESCRIPTION" and the same the option 

"YES/NO" for vorine:. Select the oDrion YES or 

assent to the Resolution and 


that you dissent to the Resolution. 


Click on the "RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK" if 

you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

After the you have decided to 

vote on, dick on "SUBMIT". A confirmation box 

will be wish to confirm your vore, 

click on "OK", else to your vote, click on 

"CANCEL" and modify your vote. 

(xiii) Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the 

resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 

vote. 

You can also take ofthe VOt('.s cast 

on "Click here to on the Voting page. 

If a demat account holder has forgotten rhe 

password then Enter the User ID and the 

verification code and dick on Forgot Password & 
enter the details as by the system. 

(xvi) There is also an provision to upload BRI 
POA ifany uDloaded, which will be made available 

to scrutinizer for verification. 

for Non - Individual 

Shareholders and Custodians -For 

only. 

(xvii)Additional 

• 	 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than 

Individuals, NRI and Custodians 

are required to on to w'Afw.evotingindia.com 

and themselves in the "Corporates" 

module. 

• A scan ned Registration Form 

of the emity should be 

emailed to 

the details a 

User should be created using the admin 

and The Compliance User would be 

able ro link the accoum(s) for which they wish 

to vote on. 

• 	 After 

• 	 The list ofaccounts linked in the will be 
mapped & can be delink in case 

• 	 It is a scanned copy of the 
Board Resolution and Power ofAttorney 

which have issued in favour of the 

Custodian, ifany, should be uploaded in PDF 

format in the system for the scrutinizer to 

the same. 

• Non Individual shareholders are 

to send the relevant Board 

with 

to vote, to the Scrutinizer at the email id 

viz; vsassociates 16@gmail.com and to 

the the email id 

viz; if 

have voted from individual tab & not U~!'lV'tUC;u 
same in the CDSL e-voting system for the 

scrutinizer to verify the same. 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS 

WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT 

REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/ 

DEPOSITORIES. 

1. 	 For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary 

details like Folio Name ofshareholder, scanned 

copy of the share certificate (fron t and PAN 

scanned 	 MOHAR 

scanned copy ofAadhar Card) 

to 
/RTA email id.viz;investor@cameoindia.com 

2. 	 For Demat shareholders -, Please your email 

id & mobile no. with your respective 
Participant 

3. 	 For Individual Demat shareholders - Please 
your email id & mobile no. with your rpe'''',-r",'' 

Depository (DP) which is mandaror 
while e-Voting: & joining: virtual 

have any or issues 

from the CDSL System, you can write an 

email to helpdeskevoting@cdslindia.com or contact 

at toll free no. 180022 55 33 
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All connected with the facility 
by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh 

Sr. Manager, (CDSL,) Central 
Services (India) A 25th Floor, 


Mafarlal Mill Compounds, 

Lower Parel (East), 


M umbai - 400013 or send an email to 


or call at toll free 

no. 180022 55 33 

Genenil Instructions 

i) ted 
, No. 

and CP No.6032) and failing him 
Mr. Udaya Kumar K R,(Membership No. F11533 
and CP No. 21973) partner of Mis. V. Suresh 
\ssociates, Practising Secretaries, First 

Ganapathy Colony, IIII'd 
Chennai - 600 018 as the scrutinizer to 

scrutinize the process in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

Ii) The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion ofvoting 
at the will first count the votes cast 

and thereatter unblock the votes cast 
remote in the presence ofat least 

two witnesses not in the of the 
Company and make, not later than 3 days of 
conclusion ofthe a consolidated scru tinizds 
report of the wtal votes cast in favour or if 
any, to the Chairman or a person authorized him 
in writing, who shall countersil!:l1 the same and declare 
the result of the 

will be deemed have been on the AGM date 
subject to ofthe requisite number ofvotes in 
favour of the resolutions. 

iii) with the report of the 
Scrutinizer shall be on the website ofCDSL 
immediately after the declaration of the result. The 
results shall also be displayed on the notice board at 
the Ree:istered Office ofthe Company. 

IV) 	 The rights of shareholders shall be in 
proportion to their shares ofthe 
capital ofthe as on 

who is not a Member as on the cut off-date 
should treat this Notice for information purposes 
only. 

On Behalfof the Board 

Ajit Thomas 
Chennai Chairman 
09.08.2023 DIN; 00018691 

Off]ce : 

1032, Panampilly Nagar 


Kochi, Ernakulam - 682 036 
Tel ; 0484 2315312 Fax: 0484 - 2312541 
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PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED TO BE FURNISHED UNDER 
CLAUSE 1.2.5. OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARD (SS 2) ON GENERAL MEETINGS 

Item No.3- To appoint a Director in place ofMr.R.Venugopalan (DIN: 00704982), who retires by rotation and is eligible for 
re-appointment. 

Name ofDirector Mr. R.Yenugopalan 

Date of Birth 

DIN 
"""""""""""""""­

17.05.1962 

00704982 

Nationality Indian 

Qualifications Chartered Accountant 

Expertise in specific functional areas Experrise of more than 35 years in Finance, Taxation, various 
Statutory Rules and Regulations and General Administration. 

Date ofappointment 25.11.2019 

Number ofBoaI'd Meetings attended during 
the Financial Year 2022-2023 

4 

Relationship with other directors Not related to any Director 

Directorships held in other Companies as on 

March 31,2023 (excluding foreign companies) 

- A.VThomas International Limited. 

- The Rajagiri Rubber & Produce Company Limited 

- The NelliampathyTea & Produce Company Limited 

Membership ofCommittees ofother Companies 

- Midland Latex Products Limited (Under Strike OffProcess) 
..~.. 

Member- Share Transfer Committee 

- A.VThomas International Limited 

- The Rajagiri Rubber & Produce Company Limited 

Number ofShares held in the Company 100 
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Date 

Relationship with other directors 

foreign 

ofCommirrees ofother 

Number ofShares held in the ~UllllJaI 

PARTICULARS OF DIRECTOR SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED TO BE FURNISHED UNDER 
CLAUSE 1.2.5. OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARD (SS 2) ON GENERAL MEETINGS 

Item No.4 - To a Director in of Mr.A.D.Bopana (DIN: 00576066), who retires by rotation and is eligible for 

02.06.1941 

Name of the Director 

Date ofBirth 

DfN 

functional areas 

ason 

Mr. 

---~""""'~----------------------4 

576066 

He has more than 54 years of rich and varied In 

Administration, Plantations etc. 

27.09.2021 

Held - 4 
Attended - 1 

Not related to any Director 

Independent Director 

AVT Natural Produces Limited 
Director 

AVThomas Limited 

Member Audit Committee 

- AVr Natural Products Limited 

Member - Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

AVT Natural Products Limited 

Nil 

He is a member of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee and CSR CA)mmittee ofthe 



THE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES 2013, WHICH 

SETS OUT THE DETAILS RELATING TO SPECIAL BUSINESS AT THE MEETING, IS ANNEXED HERETO AND 

SHALL BE TAKEN AS FORMING PART OF THIS NOTlCE:­

SPECIAL 

Item No, 5 

ADOPTION OF NEW SET OF ARTICLES OF 
ASSOCIArION OF THE COMPANY IN LINE WITH 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

ofAssociation (AOA") is based on the 

rovlslons ofthe erstwhile 

to the enactment of the 
the may amend their AOA in line with the 

CompaniesAcr 2013, 

The 

the Board of Directors of the 

at its held on 

recommended this to replace the for 

approval of the Members of the ComDanv. in consistence 

with the of the 

Rules made thereunder, 

of the is available for inspection by the 
Members at the Office of the Company on any 

between 10,00 AM, to 4,00 P.M from the date 
at free ofaesparcn ofnotice till the date 

cost. 

As per the of Section 14 and other applicable 
provIsions, if any, of the Act read with the 
(Incorporation) 20 of the Members of 
the byway 
alteration ofAOA 

The Board recommends the resolution set our at Item No.5 
ofthe Notice by the Members by 
Resolution, 

None of the Directors is in any way concerned or 
otherwise in aforesaid Special Resolution. 
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the Eighty Sixth Annual with the Audited Accounts for the year ended Your Directors have pleasure in 
March 31, 2023. 

of the Company for the financial year ended March 31,2023 is summarized below: 

Amount Rs. in 

Particulars 

Profit before tax and Extraordinary items for the year 

Less: 

Profit before Tax 

Less : Provision for taxation 

(inclusive ofMAT credit utilized and Deferred Tax) 

Profit after tax 

Final Dividend for shares 

Tramfer to General Reserve 

Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 

742.62 

525.99 

5368.79 

5894.78 

291.81 

540 

5055.74 

1158.11 

6213.85 

1025.53 

566.04 

1591.57 

272.00 

1319.57 

.03 

6660.60 

194.54 

97.27 

1000.00 

5368. 

The production with 
an averageyidd per hectare as the last 

production of 1 Kg with an average of 
per hectare. Apart from this there is also a 

production of 10.56 lakhs kg year 11.13 lakhs kg) of 
bought reprocessed Tea. The sale the 
year was Rs. 159. J3 against the last average at 
Rs. 151.08 per per The crop for the current season is 

to be subject [0 normal weather 

oonditions. 

The production the year was 60642 Kg as 

the last production of 85279 Kgs. During the year 

under report, the price ofCardamom was at Rs. 1131 

per Kg. to the last year's average ofRs. 1072.811­

RUBBER 

under reporrwas 1.89lakhs 

of2.041akhs Kgs. Theas 

sale average the year was Rs. 196.71 per kg. as 

compared to the last averageofRs.205.08/-. 
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LAND MATTERS 

As indicated in the Directors' Report ofprevious years, the 

claim before the Civil Court at Pathanamthitta for recovery 

ofpossession of432.26 acres of/and, leased out to Perinad 

Estate has now been dismissed by the Court on the ground 

that the company enjoys fIxity of tenure under the The Kerala 

Land Reforms Act. Against the order of the Sub-Court, the 

Petitioner has flied a regular first appeal before the Hon. 

High Court ofKerala and the case is yet to be heard. 

DIVIDEND 

During the year, the Board ofDirectors declared an Interim 

Dividend of 500% (Rs. 50 per equity share aggregating to 

Rs. 194.54 Lalehs. Your Directors are pleased to recommend 

a Final Dividend of 500% (Rs. 50 per share) on Equity 

Share Capital for the year ended 31st March, 2023. The 

aggregate of the dividends, amounts to Rs. 100/- per equity 

share (1000%) for the year ended 31st March, 2023 

amounting to Rs. 389.08Lakhs. 

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE 

The Company has not transferred any amount to the General 
Reserve for the Financial Year 2022-2023. 

MATERIAL 

IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL 

POSITION OF THE COMPANY 

There were no material changes and commitments, afl:ecting 

the financial position of the Company between the end of 

the financial year of the Company and the date of the report 

other than those disclosed in the financial statements. 

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 

FUND (IEPF) 

Pursuant to Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 

IEPF Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 

Rules, 2016 (' the Rules') as amended from time to time, all 

unpaid or unclaimed dividends, after the completion ofseven 

years, are required to be transferred by the Company to the 

IEPF esrablished by the Central Governmenr. Furrher, 

according to the Rules, the shares in respect of which 

dividend has not been paid or unclaimed by the 

shareholders for seven consecutive years or more shall also to 

be transferred to the demat account created by the IEPF 

Authority. Accordingly, the Company had transferred to the 

IEPF Authority the unclaimed and unpaid dividends and 1950 


Equity Shares of the Company during the Financial Year 


2022-2023. The Company had appointed Mr. Ajit Thomas, 


Chairman, as Nodal Officer, in pursuance ofInvestor Education 


and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer 


and Refund) Second Amendment Rules, 2019, for the 


purposes of verification of claim and for co-ordination with 


Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority. 


BOARD MEETINGS 


The Board of Directors consists of Mr. Ajit Thomas, 


Chairman, Mrs. Shanthi Thomas, Mr. A.D.Bopana, 


Mr. S.Ganesan and Mr.R.Venugopalan as Directors 


The Board ofDirectors met Four times during the financial year 


2022-2023. The dates on which the meetings were held arc as 


follows:- 08.06.2022, 26.07.2022, 21.11.2022 and 


27.02.2023. 


The intervening gap between the meetings was within the period 


prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 


AUDIT COMMITTEE 


The company is not required to constitute an Audit Committee 


as per Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its 


Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Section 177 of the Companies 


Act, 2013. 


VIGIL MECHANISM I WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 


The company does not fall within the ambit of the provisions of 


Section 177(9) of the Companies Act2013 regarding Vigil 


Mechanism. 


NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 


The Company is not required to constitute a Nominatioll & 


Remuneration Committee under Rule 6 of the Companies 


(Meetings ofBoard and its Powers) Rules, 2014 read with Section 


178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 


PARTICULARS GUARANTEES 


INVESTMENTS 


The Company has lIot given any loans or guarantees covered 


under the provisiolls ofSection 186 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. 


The details of investments made by Company is given in the 

note nos. 8 & 9 to the financial statements. 

PUBLIC DEPOSITS 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public during 
the year. 
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2016 

There are no applications made or proceedings 

the ComDanv under the Insolvency and 

IJANKRUPTCY 

has not entered into one time settlement with 

any Banks or Financial Institutions during the year, 

disclosure to difference between amount of the 

valuation done at the time of one~time settlement and the 

valuation done while raking loan is 

fRAUDS 

There was no instance offraud the year under 

which the (0 report to the Board 

under Section 143(12) of the Companies 2013 and the 

mles made thereunder 

& KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

In accordance with the provisions 2013 

and rhe Articles of Associarion of the 

Mr. R.Venugopalan, Director, (DIN: 00704982) and 

Mr. Director (DIN: 00576066) retire by 

rotation at the 86th Annual General and 

offer themselves for re~appointment. 'The Directors 

recommend the fe-appointment ofMr, and 

Mr, AD,BoDana at the ensuing Annual General r,,{pptina 

of 2013 

to the company. 


INFORMATION ABOUT FINANCIAL 


POSITION 

THE SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES/JV 

As required under Section 

2013, the Company has prepared a Consolidated Financial 

Statement in respect of its 

Venture companies a10ngwith its own financial statements, 

Furrher, detail:; uffill<lllLial jJerformance/finiU1ciaJ Dosition of 

the Subsidiaries and associate 

first proviso to Section 129(3) of the 

read with Rule 5 ofCompanies 

annexed in Form AOC 1 "llllt::A1UC t)y 

AND 

The company has taken adeq uate steps for conservation of 
energy by utilizing alternate sources and 

energy conservation equipment. The 
by the Section 134 (3) (m) of the 

with Rule 8 ofthe Companies (Accounts) 
to Conservation ofEnergy 
furnished in the Annexure 2 to this 

OUTGO 
During the year under 

Earnings, 
year was Rs, 1649,11 lakhs \ orevlOUS 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

The statement containing remuneration 
as required under Rule ofthe 
and Remuneration of Personnel 
forms part ofthis Report. Further the repoft and the accounts 

are being sent to the members the aforesaid 
annexure, In terms of Section 136 of the the said 
annexure is open for inspection at the Office of 
the Company during business hours on 

Company lIpro the date ofthe forthcom 
Meeting.Any member in.terested in a copy of the 
same may vVTite to the Company and the samewiU be nmvi.1".1 

free ofCOSt to the member. 

AUDITORS 

Pursuant to the provisions ofSectton 139 
provisions ofrhe the members ofthe 
Company in their Annual General Meeting 
held on 15.09,2022 had 
Chartered Accountants, 
the Statutory Auditors of the 
years till the conclusion ofthe 
In view of the amendments to the 
their appointment need not the 
Members, 

AUDITORS' REPORT 

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks mentioned in 
the Auditors' report. The notes to accounts part of 
fInancial statements are needs no further 
clarification, 
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SECRETARIAL 

Secretarial Audit is not as per Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial 
Personnel) Rules 2014 read with Section 204 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, 

The relevant Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries ofIndia relating to the Board 
and General Meerin!!s have been complied with bv the 

COST AUDIT REPORT 

The provisions of Cost Audit under Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
The company has maintained COSt Records as per 

Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014. 

INTERNAL AUDITORS 

The Company has in Internal Audit and 
Internal Financial Control system commensurate with the 
nature of irs business and the size and comDlexities of 
operations and with reference to the financial 
statements. 

During the year under Mis. PSDY & 
Chartered Ernakulam carried out the internal 
audit of the company and submitted their reports. Your 
directots endorse that the year under review, there 
were no reportable material weaknesses in the present systems 
or operations ofinternal controls. 

INSURANCE 

The Company continues to carry adequate insurance 
coverage for all assets. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties 
were in the Ordinary course ofbusiness and at Arm's 
pricing basis. Details ofthe transactions are provided in Form 
AOC - 2 which is attached as Annexure 3 to this report. 

There were no material orders passed by the 
Regulators! Courts which would impact [he going concern 
status of the Company and its future operations. 

ANNUAL RETURN 

A copy of Annual Return of the Company as provided under 
sub-section (3) ofSection 92 Companies 2013 is 
enclosed as Annexure- 4. 

INDUSTRIAl. RELATIONS 

During the year under your company enjoyed cordial 
relationship with workers and employees at all levels. 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RRI)PONSIBILITY 

The company does not fall within the ambit ofthe nr(Wl~,()m 
of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 
Corporate Social during the Financial Year 
2022-2023. 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

The Board has constirured a Stakeholders l'\.c,,,,,umw 

Committee ofMr.AjitThomas, as 
Mrs. Shanthi Thomas and Mr.A.D.Bopana as Members 
of the Committee. The Board has 
Mr. Deepak.G.Prabhu, General Manager Finance of the 
Company to handle investor grievances, 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

Pursuant to Section 134 ofthe 2013 
the had laid down the procedures to inform Board 

Regarding the 

event or ;lp"plrmrn 

risk business Strategy 

members about the risk assessment 

the company follows a minimal 

below.as 

Particulars Risk Minimizing steps 

Fixed Assers and I The company has taken 


Current Assets 
 insurance coverage ofits fixed assets 

and current assets which will 
of another 

The company has a conservative 

debt policy. The debt component 
is very marginal 

Financial Risk 

Mr. Deepak.G.Prabhu, General Manager-Finance has been 
assigned the task of informinl?: the Board about the various 
risks and its 

At present the company has not identified any element of 
risk which may threaten the existence of the 

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

In the preparation ofthe financial statements, the 
has followed Standards referred to in Section 
133 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. The significant 

applied are set out in the Note 

1 to the Financial Statements. 
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DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL 
HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORK PLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) 2013 

The Company has in Sexual Harassment Policy 

in line with the of the Act and that an Internal 

Complaints Committee has been set up for redressal of 

complaints and that all contractual, 

temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 

not received anycompliam 

under Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace 

Prohibition & Act, 2013 

During the year the 

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the under Section 134 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors' 

Responsibility Statement, it is confirmed that: 

1. 	 In the preparation of the annual accounts for the 
Financial Year ended 31 2023, the applicable 
accounting standards had been followed along with 
proper explanation to material departures; 

II. 	 The Directors have selected such accounting policies 
and applied them and and 

estimates that are reasonable and so as to a 
true and fair view ofthe state ofaffairs ofthe company at 
the end of the financial year and of the DrOnt of the 
company fOf that 

III. 	 The Directors had taken proper and sufficient cafe for 
the maintenance of records in 
accordance with tbe of the Act for safe­

guarding the assets of the company and for preventing 
and detecting fraud and other 

IV. 	 The Directors had the annual accounts the 
March, 2023 on 

concern 

V 	 The Directors had laid down internal nnancial controls 
to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were 
I"ftprt'lw'!v' and 

VI. The Directors had devised proper system co ensure 
with the provisions of all laws 

and that such systems were adeouate and 
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For and on Behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ajit Thomas 
Chennai Chairman 
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FORM Aoe - 1 ANNEXURE 1 

Statement salient features ofthe finandal statement ofSubsidiaries 
to hrst proviso to sub-section (3) ofsection 129 read with rule 5 ofCompanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Part ''A:.': Subsidiaries 

Name of the SUOSl(l!aI Midland Latex Products Ltd.:- The company has filed application to 

of Companies for removing its name from register of 

and the same is under processing 

ANNEXURE 1 
FORM Aoe - 1 

Statement salient features ofthe financial statement ofAssociate companies/joint ventures 
to first to sub-section (3) ofsection 129 read with rule 5 ofCompanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Part "B": Associate companies/joint ventures 

SI. 
No. 

2. 

Name of Associates I 
Ventures 

AVT Natural 
Products Ltd. 

AVT McCormick 
Ingredients 
Private Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. 

2500 

01 
'0 

• of the Associate Concern is 
held by The Midland Rubber & Produce Company Limited 

It Reason the associate I venture The Accounts of Associates have been consolidated 
is not consolidated 

6. 
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The information under Section (3 (m) ofthe 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Rules, 
2014 for the year ended March 31, 2023 is given here below and forms part of the Directors' Report. 

A 	 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

The Midland Rubber & Produce Company Ltd. is committed to consclve energy in all our activities. We have been energy 

conservation measures for many years. The tOllowll1g energy measures have been adoDted at Arnakal Tea t~rt"!'V·_ 

1. 	 The belt driven fans -- 4 Nos were replaced with direct IE3 motor fans for and energy 

2. 	 Green leaf sifters 3 Nos were replaced conveyor with 3HP-IE3 motors resulting in reduction of3 HP and energy 
savmg. 

3. 	 55 KVAR 32.5 KVAR-l No 22.5 KVAR 1 No & 50 KVAR changed in MSB I & II to improve 
power factor. 

4. 	 Added ~apaClwrs KVAR-4 Nos. and 10 KVAR- 3 

5. 	 Old conventional tube 50 Wand 100 WLED in factory 

The following energy measures have been adopted at Perinaad Estate:­

1. 	 We are water through siohon method for our factory. We are less on the water pump and there bv lot of 
in KSEB charges. 

2. 	 We enhance the ofcheck dam at division and more water siphon method for our Lower division 
lot ofsavings in KSEB bill. 

3 
Form AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) ofsub-section ofSectiol1 of the Act 201 and Rule 8(2) ofthe 

Rules, 

Form for disclosure • rral1'l~:enlel1tS entered into compaLt'ly with related parties referred to in sub­
section (1) ofSection 188 of the 2013 including certain arm's length traLt'lsactions under third proviso thereto 

1. Details ofcontracts or arraLt'lgements or traLt'lsactions not at arm's length basis: 

has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related which is not at arm's 
year 2022- 2023. 

2. 	 Details ofmaterial contracts or arraLt'lgement or tfaLt'lsacrions at arm's lelll?:th basis: 

(a) of the related patty and nature of relationship: 

(b) 	 Nature ofcontracts/arrangi 


Duration ofthe contracts I 


terms ofrhe contracts or arrangements or transactions including: the 


Date(s) ofapproval the Board, 


a.s o.dvo.nces, 

in Annexure 3A ) 


For and on behalf of the Board of D j rectors 

Thomas 
Chairmm 

09.08.2023 DIN: 00018691 
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- 2 


Name of the 

A V Thomas & Ltd 

A. V & Ltd. 

AVT Natural Products Ltd 

Nature of Duration of 
Nature 

TransactionsTransaction 

-' 
co 

transactions 

transactions 

.LJ>.'-n.~ 3 A 

Amount 
Amount Salient Paid as 

Rs. Tenus Advance 

Nil 



ANNEXURE 4 

A 
[Pursuant to sub-Section(1) of section 92 of 

-

(other than
the Companies Act, 2013 and sub-rule (1) of 

Companies)rule 110f the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

-
~~ 

Form language ® English Hindi 


Refer the Instruction kit for filing the form. 


1. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

(i) *Corporate Identification Number (CrN) of the Company 

Global Location Number (GLN) of the Company 

*Permanenr Account Number (PAN) of the Company 

(ii) (a) Name of the company 

(b) Registered office address 

(c) *e-mail ID of the company 

(d) 'Telephone number with STD code 

(e) Website 

(iii) Date ofIncorporation 24/02/1937 

(iv) 

(v) Whether company is having share capital 

(vi) *\XIhether shares listed on recognized Stock Exchange(s) 

o No 

® No 

® Yes 

Yes 

(b) erN of the Registrar and Transfer Agent 
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"Financial year From date (DD/MMfYYYY) (DD/MMfYYYY) 

*Whether Annual held o Yes 

(a) Date ofAGM 
"'-'------" 

Due date ofAGM 

\Vhether any extension for AGM was Yes No 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

*N umber ofbusiness activities 

S. 
No. 

Main Activity 
group code 

Main Activity 
group 

Business Activity 
Code 

ofBusiness Activity 
0/0 of turnover 

ofehe 
company 

A Agriculture, 

forestry, 

Al Production and animals 100 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
JOINT 

*No. ofComDanies for which information is to be 

Ll5142TN 986PLC012780 ASSOCIATE 29.85 

Services Pvt. Ltd U65993TN2005PTCO'55807 ASSOCIATE 32.89 

U51 1993PTC026433 ASSOCV\TE 27.08 

<Under StrikeOITProcess) U25199KLl984PLCO 3414 SUBSIDIARY 88.04 

IV, SHARE DEBENTURES AND OTHER SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY 

(i) "SHARE CAPITAL 

a) Equity Share 

Particulars 

Total number 

38,90,835 38,90,835 

3,89,083. '5 3,89,083.5 
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N umber ofclasses 

10 


Number 

Total rupees) 

N umber ofclasses 

Class ofShares 

6% Cumulative Preference Shares of 
Rs, 10/- each 

d) 

6,25,000 

10 10 

62,50,000 

3,75,000 o 
37,50,000 ° 

Issued 

° 10 

° 

3,89,083.5 

10 

38,90,835 

° 
° 

Iota! 

amount 

° 10 

o 

° o 

Paid up 
amount 

P:lidup 

° o 

° 

Total 

° 
° o 

° 
° o 

° 
° 
° o 
o 

° 
° o 
o 
o 

° 
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Decrease during ~year 4,227 0 42,270 42,270 0 

(i) R ,,-i.orie 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(ii) Shares forfeitured 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(iii) Reduction ofshare capital 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(iv) Others, spe~ify 4,227 0 4,227 42,270 .4 :,270 0 

DEMAT 

At the end of the year 1 h/h1 38,90,835 0 
f--<" 

Preference Shares 

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0 0 0 

i Increase during the year 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(i) Issues ofshares 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(ii) Re-issue offorfeited shares 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(iii) Others, specify 

Decrease during • year 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(i) ledemption ofshares 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Oi) Shares forfeited 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(iii) Reduction ofshare 0 0 0 0 0 0 

(iv) Others, specify 

At the end of the year 0 0 0 a 0 0 
-

rSIN of the equity shares of the 

(il) Details ofstocksplit I consolidation dutingthe year (for each class 

Class ofShares (i) 

Before 

Consolidation 
N umber ofshares 

r-­
Face value per share 

-

-
~"""<"" 

-

-

After splitl N umber ofshares - - -
Consol idation 

Face value per share - <­
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(iii) Details ofshares/Debentures Transfers since closure date oflast financial year (or in the case ofthe first return at 

since the incorporation of the company) ,. 


Nil 

l.-.-_.-I 

[Details being provided in a CD/Digital Medial o Yes @No o NotApplicate 

,,,,,,, ...,,tP sheet attached for details oftransfer @ Yes o No 

Note: In case list of transfer exceeds 10, option for submission as a separate sheet attachment or submission in a CD/Digital 

Media may be shown (will be attached while with of Companies) 

Date of the annual I I I 
Date of transfer Month I I 

of transfer 
.1 I 1 ­ Preference 3 . npl,p,"n",>< 4 - Stock 

Number ofSharesI Debentures/l 
Units Transferred 

I ! Amount per Share! \I 
DebelHure/Unit (in Rs.) I 

Folio of Transferor I 
Transferor's Name [ I 1I II 

Surname middle name first name I 

Folio of Transferee I i 

Transferee's Name II 1r 
I 
~ I 

Surname middle name first name 

Date of transfer Month I I 
of transfer II I 1 2- Preference 3­ 4 Stock 

Number ofSharesI Debentures! I 
Units Ti'ansferred 

I ! Amount per Share! )I 
Debenture/Unit (in Rs,) I 

Folio of Transferor I 
Ti:ansferor's Name Il I r 

I 
I 

Surname middle name first name 

Folio of Transferee I 
Name I r I r t 

Surname middle name til~t 
~ 

23 




at the end offinancial year) *Debentures 

Number ofunits 

o 
o 

o 

Nominal value 
per unit 

o 
o 
o 

Total value 

o 
o 

Details of Debentures 

Outstanding as at Outstanding as at 
the beginning of the end of 

the year the year 

0 

0 

0 0 

(v) Securities (other than shares and debentures) 

Class ofdebentures 

Non-convertible debentures 0 

Partly convertible debentures 0 

debentures 0 

Nominal Value 
ofeach Unit 

Increase 
the year 

0 

0 

0 

Decrease 
during the year 

0 

0 

Total 

V. *Turnover and net worth of the company 

(i) Turnover 


(iJ) Net worth of the 


VI. HOLOING PATTERN Promoters 

Individuall Hindu 
(i) Indian 
Oi) 
(iii) 

Numberof 
Shares 

S. 

No. 


Total number ofshareholders (promoters) 
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VI. (b) "SHARE HOLDING PATTERN - Public I Other than promoters 

S. 
No. 

1 Individual I Hindu Undivided Family 

(i) Indian 

(ii) Non - resident Indian (NRI) 

(iii) Foreign national (. thanNRI) 

2 Government 
-_.... 

(i) Central Government 
........... 

(ii) State Government _.__ . 

(iii) Government companies 

3 Insurance rom n;1n i,..<, 

4 Banks 

5 Financial institutions 

6 Foreign institutional investors 

7 Mutual funds 

8 Venture 

9 Body corporate(not mentioned above) 
r-­

10 Others IEPF,HUF,TRUST 

Total 

Number of 
Shares 

46,' 

675 

0 

1,475 

0 
- --.....---~ 

0 

0 

1 

1,687 

0 

0 

0 

1,784 

60,397.5 

"L\cHA.UL"51:. 

12.08 

0.17 

0 

0.38 

0 

0 

0 

0.32 

0 

0 

0 

0.46 

1 

18.35 

Preference 

Number of 
D> 

Shares 
1 I:l L.ell Ld!OC 

0 0 
~ .. 

0 0 
-

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

Total number ofshareholders (other 

Total number ofshareholders + Publici 
other than promoters) 

VII. *NUMBER OF PROMOTERS, MEMBERS, DEBENTURE HOLDERS 
(Details, 

Details 

umUl<;r~, Members (other than promoters), 

Promoters 

250 240 

o 0 

0r 
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VlII. DETAIlS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

(A) "'Composition ofBoard ofDirectors 

Number ofdirectors at the N umber ofdirectors at the 

beginning of the year end of the year 

ExecLltive Non- Executive Executive Non- Execu tive 

A Promoter 0 1 0 1 
~---

B. Non-Promoter 0 4 4 
~-r· 

(i) Non-Independent 0 3 0 3 

(ii) Independent 0 1 0 I 

C. NomineeDirectors 
Reprpcpntino­ 0 0 o I 0 

[ (i) Banks & FIs 0 0 0 0 

Investing institutions 0 0 0 

Government 0 0 0 

(iv) Small shareholders 0 0 

0 0 

Total 5 0 5 

n ofshares held " ~n.A.w 

directors at the end : year 

Executive Non- Executive 

o I 

0 0.02 

0 0.02 

0 0 

0 0 

0 

0 

0 0 

0 

0 

1.67 

Number of Directors and Ilanag<::mu personnel (who is not as on the financial year end date 

(B) (i) *Details ofdirectors and personnel as on the closure offinancial year 

financial year: 

DIN/PAN 

00018691 

Name 

Director 

SHANTHI 'fHOMAS Director00567935 o 
APPARANDA DEVAIAH BOPANA 00576066 Director o 

Director 100• RAMASWAMYVENUGOPALAN 

DirectorGANESAN o 

ii) Parriculars in director(s) and Key HlaJlaj?,eHiU 

Name DIN/PAN 
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IX. MEETINGS OF MEMBERS/CLASS OF MEMBERS/BOARD/COMMITTEES OFTHE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

A MEMBERS/CLASS/REQUISITIONED/NClT/COURT CONVENED MEETINGS 

Number meeungs held 

Date of 
Total Numbcrof 

Members entitled to 
attend 

Type 

Annual General Meeting 

B. BOARD MEETINGS 

Number ofmeetings held 

246 

Attendance 

1.67 

Total Number ofdirectorsS. 
Date associated as on theNo. % ofI Numberof 

date ofmeeting directors attended attendance 

08/0612022 4 80 

2 26/07/2022 603 

3 2111 ]/2022 4 80 
------«««««,««-+ 

4 27102/2023 5 5 100 

C. COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

Number 

S. 
No. 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

8 

9 

meetings held 

Stakeholders ReiadonshipCommittee 

Stakeholders ReiationshipCommittee 

Dare of 
meeting 

16/1112022 

19/01/2023 

Total Numbcr of 
Members as 

on the darc of 
the 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

3 

Attendance 

Number of % of 
members atren 

2 

2 

66.67 

2 

2 66.67 

2 66.67 

66.67 

3 100 
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X 

D. *ATfENDANCE OF DIRECTORS 

Board Meetings Committee Mf'f'tings 

Number of Number of 
S. Number Number 

Name of the Director of % of ofNo. which attenda­ which 

director was w,-,-uU1S0 

nee directorwas 
,,\c\cuub, 

attended attendedentitled to entitled to 

attend attend 

1 AJIT 4 4 100 9 9 
_ .. 

2 SHANTHITHOMAS 4 75 9 9 

3 APPARANDA DEVAlAI-I BOPANA 4 I 25 9 I 

4 RAMASWAMYVtNUGOPALAN 4 4 100 0 0 

5 SWAMINiITHAN GANESAN 4 4 100 0 0 

% of 

attenda­

nee 

100 
.......­
100 

1 

Whether 

! attended AGM 

held on 

(Y/N/NA) 
I 

AGM to be 
held on 

30109/2023 

*REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL­

Nil 

details to be entered 
Whole-time Directors Manap'erwhose remuneration 

S. 
Of',;O'no Gross Commission 

Stock 
Optionl 
Sweat 
equity 

Others Total Amount 
No. 

Name '0' 

I 0 

Iotal 0 

NumberofCEO, CFO and ,-"omuaH remuneration details to be entered 

S. 

No. 
Name Gross Salary Commission 

Stock 

OU1ers Total Amount 

0 

Total 0 
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*A Whether the company has made 
Act, 2013 during the year applicable 

Number ofother directors whose remuneration details to be entered 

S. 
No. 

Name Designation 
Gross 

Commission 

Stock 
Optionl 
Sweat 
equity 

Others 
Total 

Amount 

1 A]ITTHOMAS Director 0 0 0 

2 SHANTHITHOMAS Director 0 0 0 

3 APPARt\NDADEVAIAH BOPANA Director 0 0 0 10,000 10,000 

4 RAMASWAMYVENUGOPAlAN Director 0 0 0 40,000 40,000 

5 SWAMINAIHAN GANESAN Director 0 0 0 40,000 40,000 

Total ° ° 0 1,60,000 1,60,000 

XI. MATTERS RELATED TO CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCES AND DISCLOSURES 

1l:'"""LC~ and disclosures in respect of Yes No 

B. IfNo, reasonslobservations 

PUNISHMENT - DETAILS 

(A) DETAILS OF PENALTIES! PUNISHMENT IMPOSED ON COMPANY/DIRECTORS !OFFICERS 

Nil 

Name of the counl N arne of the Act and Derails ofName ofthe 
Date of

concerned section under which 
Order

offioers present sta ms 

(B) DETAILS OF COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES 

Name of the 
company! directors! 

officers 

Name of the court! 
concerned 

Date of 
Order 

Name of the Act and 
section under which 
offence committed 

Particulars of 
offence 
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XlII. Whether complete list ofshareholders, debenture holders has been enclosed as an attachment 

® Yes 0 No 

(will be attached while with Registrar of Companies) 

XIv. COMPLIANCE OF SUB-SECTION OF SECTION 92, IN CASE OF LISTED COMPANIES 

In case ofa listed company or a company 

secretaty in whole time 

of Ten Crore rupees or more or turnover of Crore 
rupees or more, details the annual return in Form MGT-S. 

Name 

Whether associate or fellow o Associate Fellow 

Certificate of Dracrice number 

I/We certifY that: 

The return states the as on the date ofthe closure ofthe financial 

I am Authorised by the Board ofDirectofs ofthe company vide resolution no. LL___..J 

(DD/MM/YYYY) to this form and declare that all the 
thereunder in respect of the 

(b) 	 Unless otherwise stated to the contmy elsewhere in this the Company has complied with all the 
provisions of the Act during the financial year. 

Declaration 

declare that: 

J. 	 Whatever stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and and no information material 
to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per the original records main rained bv the 
company. 

2. 	 All the attachments have been completely and artached to this form. 

Note: Attention is also drawn to the provisions ofSection section 448 and 449 ofthe 2013 which 
"m,,;A~ for Dlmishment for punishment for false statement and punishment for false evidence respectively. 

To be by 

Director 

DIN ofthedirector 
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To be digitally signed by 

o 

o ."prrpt~rv in Practice 

Certificatenumber number 

Attacbment5 List ofamu::hmcnts 

1. List ofshare debenture holders 

2. COpy of MGT-8 

3. Attachment(s}, ifany 

is scheduled to be held on 

the Form MGl:S duly 
'omplman ofAGM, 

the 
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on the Standalone Financial Statements 

have audited the standalone financial statements ofTHE 
MIDLAND RUBBER & PRODUCE COMPANY 

Kochi which comprise the 
2023, and the statement of 

and statement ofcash flows for the 
and notes to the financial scatements, including 
of and other 
information. 

In our opinion and to the besL of our information and 
(0 the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 

standalone financial statements give the information 
by lhe Act 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so 

give a true and fair view in conformiry with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and 
and irs cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 
on Auditing specified under secdon 143(10) of the 

Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
are further described in rheAuditors Responsibilities 

for the Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements section of 
our We are independent ofthe Company in aCCOlciance 
with Code ofEthics issued by the Institute ofChartered 
Accountants of India (lCAL) together with the ethical 

that are relevant to our audit oftile standalone 
"Wlements under the provisions of the Companies 

2013 and the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
to provide a basis for our opinion 

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements 
and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is 
other The other information 
management report, irs annexures, Board's 
annexures, Director's statement, but does not 
include the standalone Financial Statements and our Audir 

on the standalone financial statements does not 
other information and we do not express any form 

conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, considel whether the other information is 

inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements or our obtained the course of 
our audit or otherwise appears to be misstated. 

If, based on the work we have we conclude that 
material misstatement ofthis other information, we 

report that fact. have 

\'.Alar)!;eU with 

The Board of Directors is for the 
matters stated in section of the Act respect to the 

ofthese standalone financial statements that give 
true and fair view of the financial financial 

or to 

and cash flows of the 

and other 
of appropriate 

and estimates that 

financial statements, management is 
the abiliry to continue as 

>JIlLdlm:, matters related to 

basis ofaccounting 
the Company 

realistic alternatIve but to do so. 

The Board ofDirectors are also for overseeing the 
financial process. 

Auditor's KesponslI)JJ1 for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements 

Our are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as whole are free fi-om 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

that includes Reasonable 
assurance is a level of assurance but not a 
that an audit in accordance with SA" 
detecr a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

fraud or error and are considered material if, 
could reasonably be 
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As part of an audit in accordance with we exercise 

.. 

Drofessional judgment and maintain professional scepticism 

the audit. We also: 

and assess the risks ofmaterial misstatement of 

the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 

and audit responsive to those 

risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 

to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 

ofnot detecting a material misstatement resulting from 

fraud is higher than for one from errOf, as 

fraud may involve collusion, intentional 

omissions, misreoresentations, or the override ofinternal 

control. 

.. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant 

to the audit in order to audit that are 

.. 
In 

Evaluate 

in the circumstances. Under section 

of the Companies Act, 20l3, we are also 

for cxoressine: our oDinion on whether the 

opel'Ulll~ eftectiveness ofsuch controls. 

used 

related disclosures made by management. 

• 	 Conclude on the 

of the concern basis 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 

ofmanagements use 

exists related to events or conditions that 

doubt on the Company's abilitv to 

we are to draw 

attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures 

in the financial statements or, if sllch disclosures are 

to our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 

of our auditor's report. future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 

as a lI:oino concern 

.. Evaluate the overall presemauOl 

of the the 

and whether statements represent 

the 

fair 

transactions and events in a manner 

that 
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financial statements that, or in aggregate, makes 

it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 

user of the financial statements may be 

influenced. We consider and 

factors in 0) 
wevaluate 

the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 

statements. 

\'(7e communicate with those 

among other matters, the 

with governance 

scope and 

of the audit and significant audit 

deficiencie, in imernal control that we identify 

during our audit. 

We also provide those with governance with a 

statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

lq;"1\.tUJ'~ U1UC,!-'U1U,.llC.C., and to communicate 

with them all relationships and other matters that may 

where 

be thought to bear on OUf independence. and 

related saree;uaras. 

From the mauers communicated with those with 

governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

in the audit ofthe standalone financial sratements 

of the current and are therefore the key audit matters. 

We describe these marters in our auditor's report unless law or 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or 

when, in rare circumstances, we determine that a 

matter shou Id not be communicated in our repon because 

the adverse consequences so would be 

to the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

Report on Other and Regulatory 

(Audicor's 

Order") issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 

an Annexure A, a 

Statement on martel'S paragraph 3 and 4 of 

the said order, to the extent applicable 

As required by Section ofche we reporr 

that: 

1. by The 



includ 

understanding, whether 

(a) 	We have sought and obtained all the information 

and explananom to the best 

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit. 

(b) In our proper books ofaccount as required 

law have been by the so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books. 

The Balance the Statement ofProfit and 

and the Cash Flow Statemem dealt with by this 

Report are in ClcrrpPlnpnt the books ofaccounts 

of the company. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial 

statements with the Standards 

speClflea under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) 	Based on the written received from 

the directors as on 31"March 2023 taken on record 

by the Board none of the directors is 

disqualified as on 31" March 2023 from 

appointed as a director in terms ofSection 164 

of the Act. 

Wi th respeer to of internal financial 

controls over financial of the company 

and the etlectiveness ofsuch controls, refer 

our separate report in Annexure B; 

With respect to the other matters to be included in 

the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 

of section 6) of the Act, 

amended: 

In our and to the best of our information 

and to the to us, the 

company has not made any payments which are 

covered under section 197 read with Schedule V of 

the Companies Act, 2013. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in 

the Auditor's Repon in accordance with Rule J I of 

the and Auditors} 2014, 

in our opinion and to the best ofour information 

and accordin>r to the explanations given to us: 

I. 	 The company has disclosed the of 

litigations on its financial posmon !l1 

statements -Refer Note 28 to the 

ll. 	 The Company did not have any lOng-tel 
contracts derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses 
as at March 31,2023. 

IV. 	 The 

no 
are material either 

individually or in the aggregate) have been 
advanced or loaned or invested from 
borrowed funds or share 
other sources or kind of 

to or in any other person or 
including fo 

with the 
whether recorded in 
that the Intermediar 

or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

or 

(b) 	 The to 

the best of its knowledge and bel let, no 
funds are material either 
individually or in the have been 

the Company from any person 

or invest in other persons or entitles 
identified in any manner whatsoever 
on behalf of the Party 

any guarantee, or 
the like on behalfof the Ultimate 

34 



Based on the audit that have 

been considered reasonable and 

in the circumstances, nothing has come to 

our notice that has caused us to believe that 

the represenraclons under sub~clause (i) and 

(ii) 	 as provided under and 

contain any material 

misstatement. 

The final dividend proposed in the 
year, declared and the 
lhe year and rhe interim dividend declared and 

by the Company the year and until 
the date of this report are in with 
Section 123 of the act. 

the BoarJ ofDirectors of the Company 
final dividend for the year which 

to the approval of the members at the 
~ General The amount 

of dividend proposed is in accordance with 
section 123 of the Act, as 

AUDIT TRAIL 

Proviso to rule LUlIlpal1le~ (accounts) 
2014 for books ofaccount 

software which has a feature of 
recording audit trail log) is applicable 
to the company with effect from lst April2023,and 

under rule 11 of 
and auditors)rules.2014 is not 

the financial year ended march 
31,2023. 

For SURI & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm No.004283S 

Chennai 

09.08.2023 UOIN: 23219922BGWKJG4867 
HueDllIp No. 219922 
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The Annexure referred to in 
to the members of the company on the financial statements 
for the year ended 31st March 2023, we report that: 

i) (a) A The has maintained proper records 
particulars, quantitative 

details and situation affixed Assets. 

B. 	The company does not have any intamrible 
and hence clause of the 
applicable for the year. 

(b) 	The has a regular programme ofphysical 
all fixed assets 

manner over a of 
oplmon, 1'his periodicity 

is reasonable having regard to 

the Company and the nature of its assets. In our 
opinion, and to the information and 

to us, no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such veriflcation. 

to the information and pvnl..,n~t;n 

to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the the title deeds of the 

than immovable 

(c) 

lease agreement are in favour disclosed in 
the Financial Statements are held in the name ofthe 
company. We we(e informed that the of 
the immovable London is under process 
as on 31-3-2023. 

(d) 	 co the information and explanations given 
co us on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the 
revalued its ProDenv, PlatH 
(including Right 

(e) 
us, no have been initiated 

against the as at 
any benami property under 

the Benami (Prohibition) Act, 1988 

(as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. 

ii) Physical verification of has been 
conducted reasonable intervals the 

the year. In our opinion, the 
reasonable. We wcre 

of 

were noticed. 

verification between the 

records have been properly dealt in the books of 

aCCOunts. 
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According to the information and 
(0 us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the company, the company has not been 

sanctioned overdraft limit of more than five crore 

rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of 

, of current assets. of 
submission ofthe monthly returns or statements filed 

by the company with such banks are not applicable. 

iii) The has made investments in 

not prejudicial ro the Company's interest. 
to the information and explanation (Q 

us and on the basis ofour examination of the records of 
the Company, rhe 

According ro the information and given to 

us and on the ofour examination of the records, 
the has not any loans, or any 
guarantee Of securi ty as under Section 185 of 

Act, 2013 and the Company has not 
as sDecified under 

v) The not accepted any Of amounts 
which are deemed to be under the directives of 
the Reserve Bank ofIndia and the provisions ofSections 

73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act, 2013 and the rules fr;uned 

where Accordingly, the ofclause 
of the 0 rder are not applicable. 

Th!~ maintenance ofcost records has been 
the Central Government under section 1 

have broadly reviewed the 
books ofaccounts to labour and other 

purSU3m to 

Rules, 2014, 

maintenance ofthe cost record.~ under suh·seci ion (I) of 
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, ,md of the 

accounts and 
cOSt records been made and maintained. However, 

we have not carried out examination of d1e 
COSt records with a view to determine whether they are 
accurate or complete. 



a) 

b) The details of Disputed Jld.LUlU! 

not been Daid are as under: 

nU,;U1UlUK 

dues which have 

viii) Based on the information and explanation 

and based on the records veritled 

transactions relating to previollsly unrecorded income 

that have been surrendered or disclosed as 

the year in the tax assessments under the Income 

Act, 1961. 

Based on the information and 

us and based on our verification ofbooks 

the company has not defaulted in repayment ofloans 

or other or in the paymem of interest 

thereon to 

on the explanation and information gIven to 

us, the has not been declared willful 

defaulter any bank or financial institution or 

government or any government authority. 

Based on the Plilll<illOll and informacion to 

us, the company has not obtained any term loan and 

hence clause of the Order is not 

(d) Based on the information and given to 

us and based on an overall examination ofthe financial 

funds raised on short 

term basis 
the year for l"nIT_rf'>rrn 

The company has not taken any funds from any 
or person on account of or to meet the 

obligation of its subsidiaries as defined under the 
_ Act, 2013. Accordin;:dv. clause 

of the Order is not 

The LU!"!)'!U 

year on ofsecurities held !flitS any 
or person on account ofor to meet the VUJI!~<IW.J'" 
its subsidiaries as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 

x) (a) The company did not raise money by way of 
initial public offer or further offer (including 
debt and term the year, 
Accordingly Para 3 is not 

the company has not made any 
or ofshares 

or convertible debentures partially or optionally 
the veal' and hence 

Based on the examination of the books and records 
of the and to the information 
and CAIJ1dll<l'.JV'IJO 

the 

(b)Based on the information and 
us and based on the examinatiol~ of the 

no reporr under sub-section (12) ofsection 
143 of the Act has been filed by the 
auditors in Form as prescribed under rule 13 

rnn',mf'>C (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 
the Central Government during the year and upto 
the date of this report. 

(c) The 

The Company is not a Nidhi 
Para 3 (xii) of the Order is not dfJfJULdU!C 

In our opinion, the Company is in with 
Section 188 of the Act, 2013 with respect 
to applicable transactions with the related and 
the derails of related parry transactions have been 
disclosed in the standalone financial statemen ts as 

the aoolicable Accountimr Standaxds, Section 
177 ofthe 

37 



(a) In our opinion, based on the information and 
given to us, section 138 ofthe companies 

act is not 

according to the information and 

to the company. HmhlPw' 

ro us, the company has an internal audit system 
commensmate with the size and nature ofits 

have considered the reports of the Internal 

Auditors for the period under audit 

Based on the information and given to us 
and based on the audit the books of accounts, during 
rhe year the has not entered into any non­
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 
with its directors and hence ofsection 192 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 arc nor applicable to the 

the Company is not to be 
under section 4 5-IA of the Reserve Bank 

ofIndia Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause of 
the Order is not 

is nOt to be 
of the Reselve Bank 

clause 3h:vilrb) of 

The company is a not Core Investment 
madeas defined in the 

Reselve Bank ofIndia and hence clause 
3(xvi) (d) of the Order is not applicable. 

The Company has not incurred cash losses the 

financial year covered by our audit and the 

financial year. 

On the basis ofthe financial ratios, and 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of 
flnancialliabilities, other information accomDanving the 
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management and based on our 

examination of the evidence supporting the 
nothing has come to our attention, which 

causes us to believe that any material 
as on 
company IS 

at the date of balance sheet as when they fall due 
within a period from the balance sheet date. 

We, state that this is not an assurance as to the 
future of the company. We further state that 
our based on the facts up to the date ofthe 
audit report and we neither any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
of one year from the balance shect date, will get 
discharged the company as and when fall due. 

the date of the audic report JnQlcatll 
its liabilities 

The company is not covered under the provisions of 

Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013. 

clauses 3 of the Order 

are not applicable. 


For SURI & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm No.004283S 

Chennai 


09.08.2023 UDIN: 


G. Rp'H'f'.l1"~icl 
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) 
ofSub-section 3 ofSection 143 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of THE MIDLAND RUBBER & PRODUCE 
COMPANY LIMITED ('the Company') as of 31-March­
2023 in with our audit of the standalone financial 

for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Intemal Financial. C.-ontrols 

The management is responsible for establishing 
and internal financial controls based on the 

over financial criteria established 
considering essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note all Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia nCAl'). 
responsibilities include the 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 
were effectively for the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its including to company's 

the of its assets, the Drevention and 
and errors, the accuracy 

and the 

Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

''''fJUU'luHny is to express an opinion on the 
nnon,~'~1 controls over financial 

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit ofIntemal Financial Controls over 

,,,,,,""""U.I" to an audit of internal financial 

Financial Reoortinl! (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards 

based on 

ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
of the Act, 2013, to the 

to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, issued the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
that we comply with ethical and 'and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether internal financial controls over financial 

established and maintained and ifslIch comrols 
effectively in aU material respects. 

to obtain audit 
inrernal financial controls 

allJ their 
Our audit of internal financial controls over 

financial included obtaining an of 
internal financial controls over financial ,'Prlfwnna ct.""""",,: 
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing 

the and effectiveness of internal 
control based on procedures selected 

on the auditor's judgmem, including the assessment 
risks ofmaterial misstatement ofthe financial statements, 

whether dUe to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and to a basis for our audit 
opinion on the internal financial controls system 
over financial 

of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting 

Inherent Limitations ofInternal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting 

Because ofthe inherent limitations ofinternal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the possibility ofcollusion 
or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 
detected. of any evaluation of the internal 
.financial over financial to future 

with 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the has, in ail material 
adequate internal controls system over 

to the risk that the internal financial control over 
becallse of 

and such illternal financial controls over financial 
",tte·rri\/f'iv as at 31-Mar-2023 based 
over financial criteria 

Company considering the essential 
control stated in the Guidance Note 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accounrants 

For SURI & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm No.004283S 

Chennai 


09.08.2023 UDIN: 
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Notes 

T 

as at the 
of 31.03.2023Particulars 

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs 

1. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Shareholder! Funds 
(a) 	 Share 2 38.91 38.91 
(b) 	 Reserves and 3 

Non - Current Liabilities 4 

term 


Curnnt Liabilities 	 5 
(a) 
(b) 

Short Term 
lI>ade P~,,"hlpc 

Total 

Totaloutsta 
than Micro 

Other Current 	

29.71 8.78 

365.51 	 297.51 
322.88 

Short -Tbm Provisions 

TOTAL 
II. ASSETS 

assets 

6 	 4,480.38 1,1 02.45 

7 	 174.66 166.87 
(b) Others 

Non current Investments 	 8 
(c) 	 Deferred Tax Asset 31 51.78 68.41 

term Loans and Advances - Capital Advances 28.43 6.66 
(e) 	 Other non - current assets 10 

Current Assets 
(a) 	 Current Investments 9 6,421.25 7,17U9 

Inventories 11 469.93 431.04 
Trade Receivables 12 313.70 100.98 

(J) Non 
(a) • and 

Plant and Equipment 
in Progress 

Bearer Plants 

(d) 	 Cash and Cash 13 318.50 

Short - term Loa~s and advances 14 


Policies 

TOTAL 

~ 

See notes to [he financial statements 


Vide our report ofeven date attached 


For SURl & CO. For and on behalfof the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No. 0042835 

S. IJanesan 	 Ajit 
Place: 

No. 219922 
Director Chairman 

Date: 09.08.2023 DIN: 08588380 DIN: 00018691 
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ss 

Particulars Notes year ended 31.03.2023 

Rs. intakhs 

for the 

year ended 31.03.2022 

Rs. inlakhs 

[ 

II 

In 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Toeal Income 

15 

16 1,106.30 1,158.11 

3.85 

IV 

Cost ofmaterial consumed 

Purchase ofStock-in·Trade 

in lnvemory of Finished 
work in progress and srock-in-trade 

Ocher 

benefits expenses 

Finance COSts 

and afllullisation expensc 

Ocher expenses 

Total expenses 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

35 

23 

(-) 

953.65 

1.16 

45.62 

1,074.20 

2,654.66 

1.66 

474.07 

509.17 

(+) 

988.00 

0.77 

82.57 

920.57 

2,500.53 

1.37 

223.06 

471.4') 

5,188.32 

V Profit before 

VI Items 

VII Items 

VlH ProfIt Before Tax 

and extraordinary items and tax 

34 

742.62 1,025.53 

1,591.57 

Tax 

X 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

Profit AJ'rerTax 

200.00 

16.63 

525.99 

260.00 

2.00 

1.31 

XI per Share 
(1) Basic 

Diluted 

Face value per ordinarv share - Rs. 1O 

135.18 

135.18 

339.13 

339.13 

for the 

Policies 

statements 


Vide our repon ofeven date :mJChed 


nores to the 

ForSURI & For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accoumant:s 

Firm's No. 0042835 

s.G. 
Director 

Date' 
Place: Chennai 

No.2J9922 DIN : 08588380 DIN: 00018691 
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31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit Before Tax and hems 742.62 1,025.53 

Adjustments for: 

474.08 223.06 
Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance 1.70 2.84 
Pront !(Loss) on sale ofAsset 
Pront on sale ofInvestmenrs 
Provision for 
Provision for Leave Encashment 
Interest Received 
Dividend I Investment income Received 
Interest Paid 

(1.98) 
(329.23) 

62.66 
2.59 

(25.50) 
(717.67) 

1.20 

(603.52) 
(448.96) 

) 
(6.62) 

18) 

(61 

Dimunidon in value ofInvestments 31.95 10.87 
Capitalisation ofBearer Plants 22.10 12.07 

Operating Profit Before WoricingCapital 264.52 (496.95) 
for: 

Trade and other Receivables (2 


Inventories (38.89) 49.40 

Trade Payables 25.59 11 ) 

Other Current Assets 2.189.47 (2,009.17) 


1 

Cash Generated From Operations 2,227.97 


Direct Taxes Paid (1 (251.99) 

Cash Flow Before 2,1 (2,584.86) 

Items Nil Nil 
--_...._­

Net Cash From Operating Activities 2,114.24 


B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Plant and (3,881.75) (434.74) 

Sale Plant and Equipment 4.00 
Purchase ofInvestments (708.81) 
Sale ofinvestments (Net OfTaxes ) 835.90 
Sale ofRubber Trees (Net -11. 52 
Interest Received 25.50 42.18 
Dividend Ilnvestment income Received 1,046.90 1,063.88 _ .._­

Net Cash From/(Used In) (2,678.26) 3,988.10 
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---

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Interest Paid 

Dividend Paid 

Net Cash Used In 

Net Decrease In Cash And Cash eqUivalentS 

Cash And Cash - At The Beginning OfThe Year 

Cash And Cash EQuivalents - At The End OfThe Year 

See accompar 
Policies 

Vide our report ofeven date attached 

For SURI & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Re!?:isrracion No, 004283S 

G. Rengarajan 
Place: Chennai Partner 
Date: 09,08,2023 No,219922 

Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2023 31,03,2022 
Rs. in lakhs Rs, in lakhs 

(1 

(486.35) 1.81) 
.---..--~.-

(292,60) 

1,110,64 

17,62 

1,128,26 

1,110.64 

For and on behalf of the Board ofDirectors 

S. Ganesan 
Director 

DIN : 08588380 DIN: 00018691 
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NOTE: 1 

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 

is a public limited company the year 1937 and has its 
rpoci~rprf'rl office at Nagar, Koehl, India. The and the crop dealt with 

the company Rubber and Cardamom. The main business and sales ofTea. Rubber and 
Cardamom. 

I. 	 ACCOUNTING CONVENTION 

The financial statements have been concern basis under rhe hisrorical cost convention on accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with the accounting standards notified under section 133 
of the COIl1Danies Act 2013 read with Rule 7 2014. 

II. 	 CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION 

AJI assets and liabilities has been classified as current or non-cmrenr as per the Company's normal operating (12 
and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. 

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 


a) Plant and 


Ill. 

arc stated at cost less accumulated and accumulated loss based on 
COSt model. 

The cost ofan item ofproperty, plant and UllJllH::llllS an asset when: 

1. it is probable that future economic benefits associated with item will How to the I1t-.p1·rH~I€,p' and 

ii. the cost of the item can be measured reliably 

COSt includes tax does not include GST credit is and other direct or allocated expenses 
net ot any income earned. Assets on Hire Purchase are capitalized at I)rinciDal value. 

b) Direct on replanting ofTeal Rubber ICardamom attributable to 

necessary for it to be in the manner intended by management less 
Rubber/Cardamom are as Bearer Plants. 


c) 


Useful lives (in 

12 

30 

50 

Bearer Cardamom Plants 

on property, and than bearer 

Act 2013, except Assets 
residual value is considered at 5% of the 
sold during the period is proportionately 

and are 

has been 

trees, tea bushes and cardamom which are 
of the assets, which are different from the lives 

Useful life adopted by the Company bearer plants is as follows: 

at 100 %, The 

Act,2013 

Asset catcgoty 

d) 	 Intangible assets amortized over their individual useful lives on lllllCllClllt: from the 

date the asset is available to the company for its use. and Amortization 
value are reviewed Deriodically, at financial year end. 
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NOTE; 1 (contd.) 

A. 	 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

TV. IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

afits assets for impairment at each balance sheet date. An impairment 

amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, if any, is 

in the Statement ofProfit and Loss. 

V. 	 BORROWING COSTS 

Borrowing costs construction or production ofqualifYing assets are capitalised as parr of 

the cost of the asset, upto the date ofcollstruction. Other hM"Am;n~ as expense 

as and when incurred. A asset is an asset that oftime to get ready for its 

intended use ofsale. 

VI, INVESTMENTS 

Investment., are stated at cost. Decline in value term investments, other than temporary, is for. 

Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Investment in immovable properties is stated at cost less 

VII. 	 INVENTORIES 

Inventories are valued at lower ofcost on average and net realisable after providing for obsolescence wherever 

considered necessary. Cost includes tax (other than GST credit is and other direct expenses. 

VIII. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Revenue is on accrual and when no or collectability exists. IS 

accounted for on their accrual. 

SALE OF GOODS 

Revenue from sale ofgoods is when all the risks and rewards of the goods have been 

to the buyer, usually on delivery of the The company collects GST on behalf of the government and, 

these are not economic benefits flowing to the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. 

INTEREST 

InteresT. income is on a time proportion basis into account the amount and the applicable 

interest rate. Interest income is included under the head "Other income" in the statement 

DMDENDS 


Dividend income is when the to receive dividend is established bv the date. 


IX. 	 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

for I .eave Encashment is accrued and provided for on the 

actuarial valuation based on projected unit credit method made at the end ofeach financial year. Actuarial 

in the Statement ofProfit & Loss and are not deferred. 

bendits in the form ofProvident Fund, Pension Fund and which are defined 

contribution schemes are to the Statement ofPront & Loss of the year when the contribution to the respective funds 

accrues. 
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X 

NOTE: 1 (contd.) 

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 

are recorded at the rates in force at the time transactions are effected. In the case 
of forward contracts, the difference between forward rate and rate on the date of transaction is dealt with in the 
Statement ofProfit and Loss on the Completion of the transaction. items denominated in currency and 

at the Balance Sheet date are converted at the year end exchange rate and the resultant loss or e:ain is dealt with 
in the Statement ofProfit & Loss. 

Xl 	 GOVERNMENT GRANTS 

Subsidies from Government in respect offixed assets are deducted from the cost assets as and when they accrue. 

Subsidies related to revenue afe in the Statement ofProfit and Loss to match them with the related costs which 
intended to compensate. 

XII. 	 TAXES ON INCOME 

Provision for Income-Tax is made for both current and deferred tax. Provision for currem income tax is made on the 
assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. Deferred tax is accounred for computine: the 
tax effect of the difference which arise the year and reverse out in the periods. 
calculated at the tax rates Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are 
is a virtual certainty that they will be realized. 

XIII. 	 EARNINGS PER SHARE 

shareholders 
welgntea average number 

during the average number ofequity shares outstanding during the 
as bonus issue, bonus element in a issue, share split, and reverse share split {consolidation 
the number ofeauity shares without a change in resources. 

of calculating diluted the net profit or loss for the attributable to 
and the average number during the are adjusted for the effects ofall 

dilutive 

PROVISIONS 

recogmzeu when the company has a present obligation as a result ofpast event, it is probable that an outflow 
economic benefits will be required ro settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 

Provisions are not discounted to their present value and determined based on the best estimate 
at the reooninl?: date. These estirnates are reviews at each reporrine: date and adiusted to reflect 

xv. 	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

A liability is a obligation that arises from 
or nOll-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events the control of lhe company or a present ooltganon 
not because it is not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the 
liability also arises in rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be because it cannot be measured 
reliably. The company does not a liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

XVI. 

are neither nor disclosed 
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NTS 
2023 

: 1 (cantd.) 

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

XVII. 	 EXPENDITURE ON NEW PLANTING 

ofdifferent crops (other than Minor Produce) upkeep and maintenance 
under "Development". 

XVIII. 	 EXPENDITURE ON REPLANTING 

The upkeep and maintenance is charged to the Statement ofProfit and Loss. 

XIX. 	 DMDEND 

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a on the date ofapproval by the shareholders and interim dividends are 
recorded as a liability on the date ofdeclaration by the Company's Board of Directors. 

xx. 	 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Cash Flow Statement is segregating the cash flows from investing and activities. Cash flow 
from operating activities is using indirect method. Under the indirect method, the net profit is adjusted for the 
effects of 

i. Transactions ofa non-cash nature. 

11. f\ny deferrals or accruals ofpast or future or payments and 


Ill. Items ofincome or expense associated with or cash flows. 


Cash and cash equivalents (includine: bank are reflected as such in Cash Flow Statement. 
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Asat As at 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs 

:2 

SHARE CAPITAL 

a. Authorised 

6,25,000­ Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 62.50 62.50 

3,75,000­ 6 % Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.IO/- each 37.50 37.50 

100.00 100.00 

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid ­ up 

3,89,083.50 - Eyuily Share~ of &..10/- each. 38.91 38.91 

c. Reconciliation , uutstanritn(T at the lJt'umn1Cl 

and at the end of the r{itJnrtimr 

Number of Shares at the beginning of the year 3,89,083.50 3,89,083.50 

Add I Less : Shares Issued I buyback etc Nil Nil 

Number of shares at the end of the year 3,89,083.50 3,89,083.50 

d. Details 
equity shares 

holding more than 5% of 

Name of Shareholder 
31.03.2023 

No. of Shares held % of 
31.03.2022 

No. of Shares held % of 

Mr. Ajit Thomas 3,17,696 81.65 3,17 81.64 

e. 	 No bonus shares / Buy back ofshares in last 5 years 

f. 	 The company has issued only one class which is shares. Each holder Shares is 
one vote in to the number ofshares held 

g. 	 Shares reserved under and contract / commitments for sale of shares / disinvestments Nil (Nil) 

h. 	 The arr(JTefFate value of calh unpaid (including Directors and of the Company) - Nil (Nil) 

t. DiscloSU1'e of Promoters .~harehlllam(T 

March 2022 

Promoter Name 
of total shares 

No. 
• % of total shares 

Mr. 81.64 % 0.0 I % 
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As at 
31.03.2023 

Rupees in Lakhs 

NOTE: 3 

RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

Share Premium Account 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Keaemptwn Reserve 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Rubber Replanting Reserve 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Add : Sale Proceeds ofRubber Trees 

Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance Provided 

Less: 

Gerleral Reserve 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Add: "jhnsfer from Profit & Loss Account 

Surplus 

Profit for the 

Add: Suwius brought forward from year 

Appropriations 

Transfer to General Reserve 

Final dividend for 2021-22· Paid on shares Rs, 75/- per share 

year·· Rs. 50/- per Share) 

Interim dividend for 2022··23- Paid on &juity shares Rs. 501- per share 

year - Rs. 25/- per Share) 

carried fonvard 

1.00 

1.70 

27.20 

26.79 

2.70 

12,334.94 

525.99 

5,894.78 

291.81 

17,800.06 

Asat 
31.03.2022 

in Lakhs 

27.20 

26.79 

1.00 

19.57 

1,000.00 
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NOTE: 4 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

a. Long - Term Provisions (Note 

Provision for Employee benefits 

For Gratuity 

For Leave Encashment 13.30 

13.30 

11.75 

11.75 

NOTE: 5 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

a. Short - Term borrowings - From Bank Secured 

The Company's facilities cash credit 
of Rs. 1,50,00,000, secured by hypothecation of 

and Machinerv in Tea and Rubber 

with thereon. 

The loans have not been by Directors or others. 

Period and amount ofdefault as on 31st March 2023 NIL (PY. 

Nil Nil 

b. Trade Payable 

Note.No. 26 for Details of dues to micro and small 
Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprises and Small 29.71 8.78 

Micro, Small and Medium _ _ 
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information collected by the management. This has been relied 
upon the auditors. 

Total dues ofCreditors other than 
tpmri<p< and Small 297.51 

Related Parties 

Other Payables 243.07 

As at As at 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lakhs in Lakhs 
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N 
oj 

As at As at 
31.03.2023 31.03,2022 

in Lakhs in Lakhs 

The trade payables schedule is as follows : 

(i) MSME 

(ii) Others 

dues MSME 

LJI::;PU1:eU dues Others 

Outstanding for 
Particulars 

(i) MSME 

MSME 

LJI~pUleU dues Others 

Less than 1 year 

8,78 

277,16 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

27.13 

Nil 

Nil 

periods from due date ofpayment 
March 2022 

than 3years Not Due 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

20.35 

Nil 

Nil 

29.71 

1 

Nil 

Nil 

Total 

8.78 

297.51 

Nil 

Nil 

Paniculars Total 

c. Other Current Liabilities 

UJlP,UU dividends 

Statutory dues 

d Short - Tenn Provisions 

Provision for Employee Benefits: ( Note No. 32) 

For Leave Encashment 

For 
Other Provisions : 

For Taxation 

205.58 

33.96 
20.00 

3.85 
326.40 

350.51 

680.76 

213.93 
38,62 

20.00 

50.33 
322,88 

2.81 

263.74 

335.96 

602.51 
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GROSS BLOCK 	 DEPRECIATION BLOCK 

Description 
Rs. 	 in lakhs Rs. 

Freehold Land 
" 

r, 
I 

30.12 30.12 	 30.12 30.12 
143.39 30.12 	 30.12 17.3.51 

138.79 138.79 	 138.79 138.79 
138.79 	 138.79 138.79 
515.69 	 351.64 251.32 602.96 10 164.06 

48.15 6.72 	 343.68 6.72 164.06 130.57 
73.73 1,237.00 108.28 	 393.10 427.64 

88.92 427.64 379.48 
Furniture And Fittings 237.24 92.86 330.10 110.73 48.83 170.54 1 

194.00 4324 237.24 72.35 38.38 110.73 126.51 121.65 
Electrical Installations 113.16 113.16 90.59 96.05 17.11 22.57 

113.16 83.09 	 90.59 22.57 
U1 
N Vehicles 373.34 7.80 13.19 187.82 lLl7 233.G7 134.88 185.52 

284.54 19971 37334 178.41 6511 55.70 l87.82 18552 106.13 
BC2ucr Plams 22.10 34.17 4.83 1.60 6.43 27.74 7.24 

4.83 


Total 3,085.06 471.91 11.17 


Previous Year 2,905.83 	 219.41 62.42 

~ Previous have been shown 

Notes' 	 Includes Rs.l and Rs.12. 331acs COSt ofLand and In with other book value of which 
amounted Rs.l and Rs. 0.62 lacs 

The COffiDanv does nm hold any lease hold 

: 7 

Amount in CWIP for a 

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 

29.90 25.54 

TIPlenon overdue or has exceeded 
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:8 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

:-.!o.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs 

1. INVESTMENTS CURRENT INSTRUMENTS: 

QUOTED: 

Instruments: 

Neelamalai agro Industries Ltd 833.47 408.58 117.91 
22.53 22.53 

628 20.02 628V1 
G) 

10,000 280.04 10,000 280.04 
39 2.45 39 

Ltd 

Persistant 

LIt 455 2.50 455 2.50 
131 2.49 l3l 2.49 
369 2.49 369 2.49 
149 2.49 149 249 

61 2.46 61 2.46 
Tata Chelllicals Ltd 297 2.49 297 

Tata Power ",ompany 
619 2.50 619 2.50 

1,132 2.50 1,132 2.50 

1 

In Structured Debt Products 

Finance Ltd 50 424.66 50 424.66 



:8 
NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (LONG 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 
shareslunits Rs. in lakhs shares!un its Rs. inlakhs shares!units Rs. inlakhs shares!units Rs. in lakhs 

In Instruments: 

AVThomas Investments Co Ltd 2.45 
AVT 

585.00 585.00 
.p. PvtLtd 

2,50,000 25.00 25.00 
Midland Latex Products Ltd 

Company) 31.86 31.86 

i.,-, 

L. J. International Ltd 428 428 
The & Produce Co Ltd 197.D3 197.03 

In Structured Debt Products 

HD BFinancial Services Ltd 50 504.08 50 
CarePvt (CCPS) 232 100.15 232 100.15 
Care PvtLtd 1,50,000 150.00 1,50,000 150.00 

250.15 

Diminution in Value 


1,313.56 15 
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; 8 
CURRENTINVESTMENiS COST 

. 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 
shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. inlakhs 

2. PREFERENCE SHARES 
Beer Works Restaurants and 

Rs. 
Virohan Pvt Ltd 

Ltd 
300 
134 

189.75 
74 42 

300 
166 

189.75 

V< 
(J1 

3. IN IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES 

Value of Land 
and 

106.30 
106.28 

0.00 

106.30 
106.28 

TOTAL 708.81 117.91 

Aj2;gn!gate amount of investments 
Lakhs-

\eg;reg:ate amount of 

",,,,cpo-~~p amount of 

Investments 1,595.57 

Preference Investments 289.78 239.70 
~~re~~t:eamount of Unmovable .....,,"p,..,.;po 212.58 212.58 

11 
Less: depreciation Immovable property 


f\gg;regate prOVlSlon for diminution in value ofinvestments. 


The to transfer shares is restricted under Section 2 (68) (i) of the 2013, Private Limited 

The Bonus shares as per Section 63 ofthe ,-,umpames fiC. 

Face Value ofEowrv Shares is Rs. 101- fully oaid UD unless otherwise stated. 

hence no cost incurred for 

http:1,595.57




NOTE; 9 

CURRENT 

,) 

Can Fin Homes Ltd 

Canara Bank 
Caonn Homes Ltd 

Cd Products Ltd 

Cera Ltd 

Power And Industrial Solutions Ltd 

Sanimar Ltd 

en Chennai Petroleum Lt
-l 

Cholamandalam Investment And Finance 

Ltd 

Cms Info Ltd 

Coal India Limited 

Ltd 


Container 
 Oflndia Ltd 

Coromandellmernarionai Ltd 

Greaves Consumer Electricals Ltd 

Ltd 

DCB Bank Ltd 

DCM Shriram Ltd 

Divis Laboratories Ltd 

Dixon India Ltd 

Dr Lal Pathlabs Ltd 

Dwarikesh Industries Ltd 

Eden Services Ltd 
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As on 01. 04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/ units Rs. inlakhs 

Hindustan Unilever Ltd 43 0.97 

Automation India Ltd 0.41 

D F C Ltd 2.43 
ICICr BankLtd 1,992 14.63 1,358 9.95 

ICICI Lombard General Iinsurance Ltd 147 1.91 452 5.51 
ICICI Securities Ltd 294 2.20 778 

lDFCLtd 2.52 
lIFL Finance Ltd ,009 3.00 4.32 

v> 
lIFL Wealth Ltd 41 0.61 

\0 Indiamart Intermesh Ltd 0.25 

855 1.24 
83 1.62 

41 1.98 112 4.35 
Ltd 291 5.18 252 4.47 

Intellect Arena Ltd 62 0.44 

Ion Ltd 231 208 3.79 
ITC Ltd 736 1.68 760 1.86 

1,838 2.84 

328 1.61 564 2.74 
Ltd 172 0.85 

Kirloskar Oil Limited 581 1.47 
KNR Constructions Lcd 98 0.29 
Kolte Pari! Ltd 53 0.15 561 1.35 

Ltd 2.91 4.22 
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 25 0.46 142 2.49 
Larsen Toubro Ltd 73 1.36 215 

Indian Enenrv Exchan£ 

India Ltd 

Ltd 

Kewal Kiran 



NOTE: 9 

- AT OF AND FAIR VALUE 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions 	 Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

sharesl units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs 

Lemontree Hotels 

LnT Services Ltd 

Manarasntra Seamless Ltd 

Mahindra & Resort India Ltd 

Ref Pwochemicals 

Maruli Suzuki ILdia Ltd 

Mastek Ltd 

Max Financial Services Ltd 

Healthcare Ltd 
0\ o 	 Motherson Sumi India Ltd 

Motilal Oswal Financial Services 

Ltd 

Limited 

Natco Pharma Ltd 

National Mineral Dev Ltd 

Navin Fluorine Inernational Ltd 

Nestle India Ltd 
NlIT Ltd 

NLC India Limited 

NOCILLtd 

NTPC Ltd 

Oil And Natural Gas Ltd 

Oracle Financial Services Software Ltd 

Orient Electric Li:nited 

38 

428 


110 


926 

21 


126 


29 

1,501 


106 


58 


51 

147 


321 


23 

19 


223 


50 


836 

63 


L87 

2.27 

0.23 

0.41 
1.61 

3.46 
4.85 

0.90 

0.81 

0.97 

1.89 

0.80 

0.95 

2.58 

0.B4 

3.60 

0.96 

0.35 
1.5 
1.36 

2.43 

2,301 


242 


608 


29 

150 

429 


lOB 

217 

83 


719 

11 


940 


25 

20 


461 


2,014 


132 


755 

23 


607 


8.37 

0.96 

1.31 

2.18 

3.90 

3.21 

1.12 

0.96 

0.65 
1.24 

4.74 

2.85 

0.52 

0.92 

1.81 

1.48 

1.56 

1.18 

0.76 

1.62 
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As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 
shares! units as. inlakhs shares! units Rs. in 1akhs shares!units Rs. in lakhs shares! units Rs. in lakhs 

Ltd 

Sbi Life Insurance Ltd 

Industries Ltd 4 1.67 20 8.51 
Persistent Ltd 79 3.39 79 3.29 
Phoenix Mills Ltd 46 0.46 57 0.57 

109 2.60 143 3.32 
322 2.24 

Radico Khaitan Ltd 283 2.97 364 3.59 
RBL Bank Ltd 6.05 

India Ltd 1,289 2.30 

Relaxo Footwears Ltd 102 .18 
0> 
>--" Reliance Etf Liouid Bees 1 0.01 

865 3.68 ,037 4.21 
231 1.93 289 2.48 

5 0.05 
Scientific Ltd 1.48 
Silk Mills Ltd 664 2.96 698 3.15 

SKF India Ltd 35 1.32 1.53 
Ceramics Ltd 187 1.54 228 1.78 

Sonata Software Ltd 349 2.73 548 3.22 
State Bank of India 1,309 6.38 2,013 9.84 

Industries Ltd 86 2.10 
Sun Pharmaceuticallndustried 399 3,32 244 2.16 

Ltd 440 1.41 4.61 
Roshni Ltd 231 1.44 

Suven Pharmaceuticals Ltd 114 0.59 
Ltd 94 0.94 152 

International Ltd 161 0.90 
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As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 
shares!units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in 1akhs shares!units Rs. in lakhs shares!units Rs. in lakhs 

Tata Communications Ltd 141 LBO 29 0.35 
Tata EIx5i Ltd 73 4.62 

Tata Motors Ltd 244 1.17 597 2.64 

43 0,55 750 0.91 
17 0.30 41 0.67 

Ltd 137 1.44 

2.54 
00 2.44 110 2,50 

65 1.35 65 1.35 
0- 93 1.72tv Tube Investments of India III 1.73 

Financial Services Ltd 4.10 
Ultra Tech Cement Ltd 21 


India Limited 
 494 2.66 
United Ltd 534 4.76 285 2.48 
UPL Ltd 482 3.52 599 4.46 
Uti Asset 176 1.27 
Vacun Ltd 363 3.34 
Vedant Fashions Ltd 63 0.58 79 0.75 
V-Mart Retail Ltd 30 1.17 248 7.39 

Ltd 688 4.23 809 
Zee Entertainment 424 0.88 
Zensar Ltd. 352 0.83 
360 One Warn Ltd. Prevo lif! Wealth Ltd 344 1.29 
3M India Ltd 3 0,71 

Diminution in Value 
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As on 01.04.2022 Additions 	 Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares! units Rs. in lakhs shares! units Rs. in lakhs shares!units Rs. in lakhs shares! uni ts Rs. in lakhs 

In Mutual Funds- Debt: 

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income Plan-Growth 1,57,892 606.11 475.89 130.22 

IDFC Low Duration Rel!- Growth 133.12 133.12 

Fund 8.24 8.24 

TOFC &PSU Debt- Growth 56.40 

-Growth 1,33,150 2,170.15 77,23 

68.00 	 68.00 

22,251 66.98 1,91,801 601.60 38,991 124.68 
0- lCICl.l'ru 
v.> 33,220 160.16 160.16 

Fund 72.50 10.56 
Fund 2,071 72.50 305 61.94 

Baroda BNP Pari bas GILT·G 200.00 200.00 

34.45 

Direct· Growth 795 39.00 795 39,00 
. Growth 788 38.00 518 24.98 270 13.02 

ICICI Pru Constant GILT- Growth 9,88,513 200.00 9,88,513 200.00 
ICICI Pru Direct Growth 90,00 90.00 

200.00 	 10,80,531 200.00 
1,022 	 39.00 1,022 39.00 

343 13.00 343 13.00 
1.471 52.00 	 1,471 52.00 

38.00 600 20.99 486 17.01 
200.00 	 200.00 

1,38,880 52,00 1,38,880 52.00 
SBI Savin!!.· Growth 1.07.740 38.00 59,563 21.0 I 48.177 16.99 

ICICI Pru Liauid· Growth 

DSP Savinl!:s-Growth 

IlFL Dvnamic Bond Rel1' Growth 

Growth 

Direct Growth 

fund Re£·Growth 

http:2,170.15




NOTE: 9 

OF AND FAIR VALUE 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares! units Rs. in lakhs shares! units Rs. in lakhs shares! units Rs. inlakhs sharesl units Rs. in lakhs 

ICICI Pm India Fund Growth 3,607 0.70 0.70 

ICiCI Pru 100 Index Fund Direct Growth 23,231 2.11 23,231 2.11 

ICICI Pm 100 Index Fund Growth 7,800 0.70 7,800 0.70 

ICICI Pru S& PBSE 500 ETF FOF Direct Growth 2.81 2.81 
~ ICICI PmS & PBSE 500 ETF FOF Growth 0.94 0.94U1 

India NiFTY 150 Index Fund Direct - Growth 2.81 2.81 
SBI NIFTY Index Direct·G l,821 2.81 1,821 2.81 

Diminution in V:Jue 

~502.84 

In Bonds and Other Funds: 


Gold PTC Series I Oct 20 50 50 500.00 

HDB Financial Services Ltd 50 513.94 
 50 
Tala Motor Finance Ltd 50 509.27 50 509.27 

500.00 



----

of 

As at As at 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

inLakhs in Lakhs 

The trade receivables schedule is as follows : 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Ttade receivables -mn<irl",Hl 

receIVables -considered doubtful 

:(iii) DisputedTtade receivables ­ considered good 

(iv) DisputedTrade receivables -considered doubtful 

(i) 

Particulars 

rprpiv~hlp., - considered 

considered doubtful 

receivables -considered good 

receivables -considered doubtful 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Total 

313.70 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

as on 31st March 2022 

n Total 

Nil 100.98 
Nil Nil 

Nil I Nil Nil 
Nil Nil Nil 

: 10 

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

:11 

INVENTORIES 

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable 

Stores and 


Estate Nurseries 


Finished Goods 


NOTE: 12 

TRADE RECEfVABLES 

Considered Unsecured: 

Trade receivable for more than six months from 
the date they become due for payment 

(b) Other receivable" 

*Includes receivables from Related Parties (Refer Note 33) 


"Debts due by Drivate limited comoanies in which directors are interested 


25.54 

148.61 

Nil 

313.70 

313.70 

274.47 

5.92 

154.71 

0.63 

Nil 

100.98 

31.98 

29.10 

66 

21.09 

21.09 

100.98 



As at As at 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rupees in Lakhs in Lald1s 

NOTE: 13 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and stamps on hand 


Bank balances With Scheduled Banks 


In Current Account 


With Scheduled Banks Earmarked balances with bank 


In Dividend Account 


In Margin money account 


Others held by Solicitor 

Bank uepOSlfS more than 12 months 

NOTE: 14 

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received: 
Debts due by of the Company 

Others 

Deposits: 
(a) With NABARD under Tea Scheme 

(b) With NABARD under Rubber Development Scheme 

Other Loans and Advances: 

Tax payments pending 


0.82 

75.87 

205.58 

241.81 

318.50 

NIL 

127.22 

6.06 

239.81 

548.49 

0.47 

1,127.79 

1, 128.26 

213.93 

34.62 

2,160.11 

2,408.66 

NIL 

151.61 

30.51 

239.81 

247.12 
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ended For year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lills Rupees in Lakhs 

NOTE: 17 


COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED (Refer Note.24) 


material- Bought Leaf 

-Tea 

NOTE: 18 

PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE 

Tea 

NOTE: 19 
INCREASE I DECRFASE IN INVENTORY 

bwentnrv at the hpuinnintr year .' 


Tea 

Rubber 


Cardamom 


Inventory at the end of the year,' 

Tea 

Rubber 


Cardamom 


NOTE: 20 
OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES 

Consumption ofStol'es and Spares (Refer Note.24) 

Power and Fuel 

Repairs and Maintenance Plant and Machinery 

: 21 

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 

Salaries and Bonus 

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 

Provision for (Note No 32) 
Provision for Leave Encashment (Note No. 32) 

Welfare LX,,,I:'J"'" 

951.87 

1.78 

953.65 

1.16 

119.78 

89.34 
275.70 

130.53 
130.88 

44.99 

321.32 

463.60 
540.45 

70.15 
1,074.20 

158.27 
66.14 

2.59 

0.77 

212.66 
62.04 

83.57 
358.27 

119.78 

89.34 

275.70 
82.57 

359.82 
15 

920.57 

2,281.78 
161.88 

10.97 
(6.62) 

52.52 

988.00 

988.00 

http:2,281.78
http:1,074.20
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For year ended For year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rupees in Lakhs in Lakhs 

NOTE: 22 

FINANCE COST 

Interest 

Other CoSt 

NOTE: 23 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Rent and Amenities 

and Maintenance 
Roads and Buildings 

Vehicles 

Others 

Insurance 

Rates andTaxes 

Payment to Auditors' 

For Audit 

For Other Services 

'TI-avelling 

and Commission 

Transport and 

and 

Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance 

Sales Promotion 

Sitting fees 

Dimunirion ofInvestments 

CSR (Note No. 

Donations 

Net Im~ on foreign currency transaction and translation 

1.20 
0.46 

1.66 

10.42 

66.31 

58.59 
4.46 

18.99 
52.81 

9.00 

4.39 
0.60 

2.85 

1.13 
36.85 
11.41 

31.60 

5.61 
6.01 

5.41 
1.70 
0.90 

1.60 

31.96 

60.00 

33.63 

509.17 

0.79 
0.58 

1.37 

82.25 

89.51 
4.61 

15.57 
20.71 

9.00 
3.08 
2.40 

1.65 

1.77 

13.87 

51.60 
22.80 

6.24 

5.97 
1.91 

2.84 

1.03 

1.60 
12.77 

7.64 

35.59 
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For year ended For year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lakhs in Lakhs 

aTE: 24 
PARTICUlARS OF CONSUMPTION 

Value in Rs. in lakhs 
Rawmaterials - Indigenous 
Bought Leaf 951.87 

Bought Tea 

953.65 

(b) Stores and 
463.60 

Imported Nil 

463.60 
-----.- ­

NOTE: 25 
EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 

a) 


Advance! 


Professional Fee & Others 


Travel 


Rent 


NOTE: 26 


TOTAL OUTSTANDING TO MICRO & SMALL ENTERPRISE5 (SMEs) 


The information dues to Small and 
required under Micro, Small & Medium 
Act, 2006 as on 31st March 2023 is furnished 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 

to any supplier as at the end of the year 


(i) 	 Principal 


Interest 


The 	amount of Interest paid by the buyer under MSMED 2006 
with the amounts of payments made to the supplier beyond the 

each 

The amount of Interest, due and for the period (where the 
has been paid bur interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 has 

(d) 	The amOUnt of interest accrued and unpaid at the end of 
of the accounting year. 

(e) 	The amOunt of further interest due and payable even in the 
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually 
to the small for the purpose of disallowance as a deducLdull: 

under section 23. 

% 

100 

100 --.­
100 _._-. 

100 

100 

Value in RI. in lakhs 

988.00 

988.00 

359.82 
Nil 

359.82 

1,584.40 

52.55 
l.84 

10.32 

29.71 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

% 

100 

100 

100 

100 

2.160.11 

2.20 

2.20 

32.56 

8.78 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

http:2.160.11
http:1,584.40


Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs 

NOTE: 27 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Profit / (Loss) after tax 


Number ofEquity Shares in calCUlau EPS 


BasicEPS 


DilutedEPS 


NOTE: 28 

CONTINGENT LLABILITI 

a) 	 Sales Tax demands in appeals, against which Rs. 33.49 lakhs 
and included under Loans and Advances 

Income Tax demands disputed in 

The future cash outflows on the above items are determinable only on 
of the decision/judgment that is pending at various forums! 

authorities. The Company does not expect the outcome of these 
adverse effect on this financial results. 

b) ContractS to be executed on Account 

c) The effect from 01.04.2014 of the and 
of the Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015 has 

Hon. High Court of Kerala. the same, the 
company has not for the additional liability. 

NOTE: 29 
lAND 

The tide to 432 acres oflease-hold in Perinaad for ninety­
nine years fi'om 08.03.1906, the Company dated 
23.01.1945. is disputed bv certain persons, to be on behalfof the 

acres, the has sold 110 acres 
acres in actual possession, being absolute owners 

of the property of tenure under the provisions of the Kerala 
Land Reforms Act. The matter was before the 

pending finalisation of the issue 
Kerala Land Reforms Act by the Land Tribunal 

vide order No. RC-3/07 dated 27-0ct-2012 held that since the 

Court of Kerala and the 
case is yet to be heard. 

72 

525.99 

3,89,083.50 

135.18 

135.18 

46.18 

52.61 

Nil 

17.82 

Nil 

1,319.57 

3,89,083.50 

339.13 

339.13 

46.18 

Nil 

Nil 

15.80 

http:3,89,083.50
http:1,319.57
http:3,89,083.50


Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs 

NOTE: 30 
SEGMENT REPORTING 

"'''""''t\ons of the Company relate to Plantation 
business segment and therefore no separate is made. 

NOTE: 31 
DEFERRED TAX ASSET 

of difference between amount of Fixed Assets in the 
Statements and the Income Tax returns 32.51 45.99 

Tax charged in the financial statements but allowable as 
deduction in future years under Income Tax 27.31 23.11 

Less: Deferred tax liability - Diminution in Value of the Investment 8.04 0.69 

Net Deferred Tax Asset 51.78 68.41 
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NOTE: 32 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

i) 	 Defined Benefit Plans 

a) )p.Cl"'l,jnrin.n of the ,.-orupany defined benefit 

Scheme 

defined benefit plan for qualifying employees 
'-'~""IJd"r makes contribution to the Fund 

managed the Life Insurance of India. The scheme 
provides for a lumpsum payment to vested 
death while in or on termination of 

occurs upon completion of five years of service. 

ii) 	 Leave Encashment: 

The company also operates a non funded leave encashment scheme for 
its 

Reconciliationb) in the Present Value 

Present Value of the Obligation as on 1.04.2022 

Current Service Cost 

Interest Cost 

Benefi ts Paid 

Actuarial loss I (gain) 

Present Value of the Obligation as on 31.03.2023 

c) 	 Reconciliation of in the fair 
value of Plan Assets 

Fair Value of Plan Assets as on 1.04.2022 

.txpected rerum on plan assets 

Contribution by the Company 

Benefits Paid 

gain I (loss) 

As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022 

Gratuity 

Plan) 

1,069.81 

66.76 

73.08 

(80.82) 

(18.63) 

1,110.20 

806.07 

3.48 

(80.82) 

0.59-_..­

Leave 
Encashment 

Funded Plan) 

14.56 

3.68 

1.03 

17.15 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

Gratuity Leave 
Encashment 

(Non Funded 

1,135.79 21.18 

72.16 3.19 

67.58 

(11.15) 

1,069.81 14.56 

816.15 Nil 
49.49 Nil 
66.87 Nil 

(1 	 Nil 

Nil 

Fair Vaill/e ofPlan Assets as on 31.03.2023 	 783.80 Nil 806.07 Nil 
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As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022 

Gratuity Leave Leave 
Encashment Encashment 

(Funded Funded Plan) Plan) (Non Funded 

NOTE: 32 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

d) 	 The total expense in the Profit and 
Loss Account is as follows 

Current Service Cost 66.76 72.16 3.19 

Interest COSt 73.08 1.03 67.58 1.34 

Expected return on assets (54.48) NA ( 49.49) NA 
Net Actuarial (gain) 1loss recognised in the year 

66.14 2.59 10.97 

e) 	 Reconciliation of Net 
in the Balance Sheet 

Net Liability as at the beginning of the year 263.74 14.56 319.64 21.18 

Add: as (d) above 66.14 2.59 10.97 

Less: Contribution 1 66.87 

Net Liability as at the end of the year 326.40 17.15 263.74 14.56--_. 

f) Constitution of Plan Assets 

Investments in LIC Group Gratuity Scheme 783.80 N.A. 806.07 N.A 

gl 	 Principal actuarial assumptions used as at the 
Balance Sheet Date 

Discount Rate 7.29% 7.29% 7.10% 7.10% 

Escalation Rate 3.50% 3.50% 4.00% 4.00% 

Attrition Rate 4.00% 4.00% 5.00% 5.00% 

rate of rerum on assets 7.29% NA 7.10% NA 

The estimates o[[uture sala.ty considered in aClurial taltt: accuunt 
of inflation, seniority. nromorion and other re/event factors such as demand and 
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NOTE: 32 


EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.) 


h) The amount 
 to defined benefit plan are as follows: 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 

funded plan 

Defined Benefit Obligation 1,110.20 1.069.81 1,135.80 1,015.52 989.65 

Plan Assets 783.80 806.07 816.15 776.57 805.99 

Surplusl(Deficit) (319.65) (238.95) (183.67) 

adjustment Plan (18.63) 52.30 (33.01) 46.74 

cxpenellce adjustment Plan Assets 0.59 0.70 0.39 

The Company expects to fund Rs. 100 lakhs towards its Plan during the year 

ii) Defined Contribution Plans: 

The makes contribution towards provident fund, 
pension fund, fund. Under the rules of these the 

to contribute a percentage of payroll costs. The 
the year Rs. 158.27 I-lakhs as expense towards contributions to 

these plans. 
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NOTE: 33 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Following associate 
on account of common control 
Board / 


- A V Thomas & Co. Ltd. 


- A VThomas International Ltd. 

AVThomas Investments Ltd. 

- The NelliampathyTea & Produce Co. Ltd. 
- Neelamalai Agro Industries Ltd 
- A VT Natural Products Ltd. 
- AVT McCormick Ingredients Private Ltd. 

J.Thomas Educational & Benevolent Trust 
AVT Natural S.A DE 
Grover Vineyards Ltd 

Personnel : Key 

are related ro the 

AVT Private Ltd 

AVThomas Leather and Allied Products Pvt. Ltd. 
A VThomas Exports Ltd. 

- Midland Latex Products Ltd. Strike 

Services (P) Ltd 
AVT Gavia Foods Private Ltd 
Midland Charitable Trust 

- AVT Natural Europe Ltd 
- Provision Value Gard Private Ltd 

Mr. Chairman 

Details of Transaction 

INCOME 

Year ended 31.03.2023 

Associates 

Year ended 31.0,3.2022 

Associates 

Sales 3,469.41 3,006.53 
Dividend Received 

EXPENDITURE 

707.36 614.00 

Purchase / Warehousm 8.26 3.84 
0.70 0.70 

60.00 I 
397.08 238.21 

35.75 26.20 
Professional Fee 

OTHERS 

BALANCE AS ON 31.03.2023 

5.00 I 6.00 

Debit Balances 
Credit 

274.47 31.98 
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NOTE: 34 

EXCEPTIONAl" ITEMS 

The investmem property jointly held with Mis 

ofRs,566,04 lakhs 

The and Produce Company Limited situated at Chennai was sold 
during the Financial Year 2021-22 ( ie Previous as per approval ofthe Board Resolution No, 003 dated 26rhAprii2021, The 
property was sold on 28th ADrii2021 for a 

Sale Consideration 1,061.50 

Book value and £,xpenm in relation to sale 

Net Drofit on sale of investment property 

NOTE: 35 

DEPRECIATION 

2.17 

474,07 

Particulars 

Property, and equipment 

Investment Property 

NOTE-36 

THE CODE ON SOClAL 2020 

assent in 
Code to Employee Benefit during emo!()vmen and post benefit received 
2020 

The Code has been in the Gazzette ofIndia, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been 
notified, 

The Company will assess the impact of the code when it comes into effect. 

NOTE-38 

Previous Year's have been wherever necessary 

NOTE 39 

DMDEND 

The Board ofDirectors in its on )ltl1 August LULj [lave a dividend per Equity Share for financial year 
ended March 31, 2023. The is subject [0 the approval of Share holders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 
30th September 2023 and would result in a cash Our flow ofapproximately Rs. 194,54Lacs, 
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NOTE: 39 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE 

Amount per Section 135 of the Act 

Amount spent 
(i) Construction / ofan asset 

On purposes other than (i) above 


Total Amount spent 


Shortfall at the end of the year 


Nature of CSR activities 

Health Care 


Measures for reducing 
 faced and 
economically backward group 

has not crossed the limit as mentioned in Section 135 of 
there is no CSR reQuirement durin>? the financial year. 

Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lakhs in Lakhs 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

7.62 

Nil 

7.64 

7.64 

Nil 

0.64 

7.00 
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NOTE 41 


CJ:) 
0 

Current Previous % 
Ratio Numerarof Denominator Year Year Variance 

Current Liabilities 6.04 -37.50% 

2 I Debt Total shareholder 0.00 0.00% 

Debt Service Interest & Lease 
+ PrinciDal ReDavments I 1,953.7 

3 

4 Return on Eauirv Ratio (in%) Profit after Tax Avera2:e Shareholders Eauirv 3 7% 

Item 
Statement 

11 
~ --­

25.37 

8 Net Sales (Sales minus sales return) Workine: CaDital 0.78 

Net Profit Ratio Net Profit (Net after Net Sales mmus 

10 Return on EBIT 4% 
net worrh+ Total debt 

+ Deferred Tax 

1 1 Return Investment Net return on investment investment 



rf>rnO'ni<c>rt Provision for Income 

N s 
for 

NOTE-42: 

The has elected to exercise the oflower as per section 115BM has 

Tax for the yeat ended March 31, 2023 and remeasured Deferred Tax Assets at the lower 

NOTE: 

OTHER NOTES 

Additional Information as required under Schedule HI Division JofCompanies Act,20 13 

(i) does not hold any Benami property and there are no have been initiated or pending 

pre 

any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibitions) Act, of 1988) and the 

(ii) is nOt declared willful defaulter bv any bank or financial institution or other lender in any time the year and 

The mm no IW has no transactions with struck offunder section 248 of the 2013 or section 560 


All the 

Act, I 


(iv) are within statutoty as specltied in the Act, 
2013. 

(v) The confirms that no are material either individually or in the aggregate)have been advanced or loaned or 
invested from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)by the Company to or in any other 

or entity, including foreign entity('Intermediaries"),with the whether recorded in writing or that 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

or on behalf of the CompanyCUltimate Beneficiaries")or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

manner whatsoever by or on 
on DehaJf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

or in the aggregate)have been received by the 
the understanding, whether recorded in 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any guarantee, security or the like 

(vi) 	 There were no transactions relating to unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income the year 
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. 

(vii) 	 The has not traded or invested in currency or Virtual during the financial year. 

the year there are no loans or advances made to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and related parties. 

has borrowings from banks on tbe basis ofsecurity of current assets. The same has been used for the purpose for 
which it was taken. 

returns I statements of current assets filed by the Company with the banks are agreement with books ofaccounts and 
hence no separate disclosure made for reason for discrepancies. 

(xi) has with Sec 2(87) of the Act read with (Restriction on number of Rules, 2017 for the 
investments made by the 


All title deeds of immovable properties are in the name of the company. 


Vide our report ofeven date attached 

For SURI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's No. 0042835 

G. Rengarajan 	 S. Ganesan 
Partner Director 

Dare: No. 219922 DIN : 08588380 DIN: 00018691 
Place: '-<UCllll<ll 
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Company 

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 

We have audited the consolidated financial 
statements ofTHE MIDLAND RUBBER & PRODUCE 
COMPANY Kochi ("the Holding 
and its and associates 
'the Group'), comprise the balance sheet 
as at March 31 st 2023, the Consolidated statement ofprofit 
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year 

and notes to the financial statemems, 
summary of policies and 
explanatory (herein referred (Q as "the 
consolidated financial statements"). 

and to the best of our information and 

true and fair view in conform 
Standards prescribed under section 133 

the ComDanies Rules, 2014 and 
in India, of 

as at March 31, 2023, the 
consolidated profit total 

and its consolidated cash flows for 
date. 

conuunea our audit in accordance with the Standards 
specified under section 143(10) of the 

Act, 2013. Our resDonsibilities under those 
further described in 

Consolidated Financial Statements section 
report. We are independent ofthe in accordance 

with the Code o/Ethics issued by the Instituce ofChartered 
Accountants of India with the ethical 

that are relevant to our audit ofdIe Consolidated 
financial statements under the provisions of the 

2013 and the Rules there under, and we have 
our other in accordance with these 

_ and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained 
to a basis for our audit 
financial statements. 

Information Other than the consolidated Financial 
Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Holding Board of Directors is responsible 
for the other information. The other information 
the managen.ent report, its annexures, Board's 

annexures, Director's Responsibility 

but does not include the consolidated Financial Statements 

and our Audit thereon. 


Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does 

not cover the other information and we do not express any 

form ofassurance conclusion thereon. 


In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 

statements, our responsibility is to read dIe other information 

and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

materially inconsistent with the consolidated flnancial 

statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of 

our audit or otherwise appe<1rs to be materially misstated. 


Ifwe conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 

other information, based on the work we have 

are required to report that fact. We have 

this regard. 


ofManagement and Those Charged with 

Governance for the consolidated Financial Statements 


The Holding Board of DirectOfs is 

for dIe matters stated in section 134(5) ofdIe Act with respect 

to the of dlese consolidated financial statements 

that a true and fair view of the consolidated financial 

position, consolidated financial and consolidated 

cash flows of the group in accordance with the dlA.UU.llt:llll'. 


generally in India, 
Accounting Standards under section 133 of the 
Ace The respecrive Board of Directors of the companies 

are responsible for maintenance of 
, ~ records in accordarlCe with , 

ofthe Act for safeguarding of the assets ofthe Group and for 
~ and frauds and other 

"flll-'lIlAU.Vllselection and 
making 
prudent; and and maintenance of 

internal financial controls, that were operating 
f'ttPNIVplv for ensuring the accuracy and 

records, relevant to the and 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that 

a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstaremem, whether due to fraud or error, 

In the consolidated financial statements, The 
Board of Directors of the company included in the 
are responsible for the ability of the group to 

concern, disclosing, as matters 
, concern and the basis of 

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 
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The Board ofDirectors included in 
Group are also for 
financial reporting process. 

Auditor's for the Audit of the consolidated 
Financial Statements 

Our are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are 
free from material whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
Reasonable assurance is a high level ofassurance but is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, or in the they could 
reasonably be to influence economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statemems. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain scepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 

.. 

.. of internal control relevant 
audit that 

in the circumstances. Under section 
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 

on whether the 

.. Evaluate the 
used and the reasonableness ot accountmg estlmates 
and disclosures made by management. 

.. Conclude on the 
of the concern 
the audit evidence whether a material 

exists related to events or conditions that 
doubt on the ability to 

concern. If we that a 
material uncel~ain~ exists, we are to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related 
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disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, 
if such disclosures are to modify our 

Our conclusions are based on the audit 
eVIdence obtained up to the date ofour auditor's report. 

future events or conditions may cause the 
Group to cease to continue as a Q:oinQ: concern. 

Evaluate the overall 
ofthe consolidated 

activities within the 
the consolidated financial 
for the direction, supervision and performance of the 

. ~ of misstatements in the 
standalone financial statements that, or in 
aggregate, makes it that the economic decisions ofa 
reasonably user of the financial statements 
may be inAuenced. consider and 

factors in (i) scope ofour audit work 
and in the results ofour work; and to evaluate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements. 

audit. 

We also provide those charged with 
statement that we have w 
requirements and to communicate 
with them all and other matters that may 

be thought to bear on our indeDendence, and 
where applicable, related 

From the matters communicated with those with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 

in the audit of the Consolidated financial 
statements of the current 
audit matters. We describe matters in our auditor's 
unless law or regulation precludes disclosure 
the matter or when, in rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our 
report because the adverse consequences so would 
reasonably be to outweigh the inreresr 
benefits ofsuch communication. 



Other Matter 

We did not audit the financial statements of aS~ULlal(::S 
included in the consolidated financial statements of the 

financial statements reflect total assets ofRs. 
lakhs as at 31st March 2023 and the total revenue of 

Rs. 53,679 lakhs for the year ended on that date. as 

considered in the consolidated financial statements. 

The consolidated financial statements also include the ~ • 
ofRs. 108.60 Lakhs for the year ended 

3 as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements, in respect of the one associate, whose financial 
statements have not been audited us. These financial 
statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports 
have been furnished to us by the and our 

on the on the consolidated financial statements, in 
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in 
respect of these associates, and our report in terms ofsub­
sections and (II) ofsection I of the Act, in so far as it 
relates to the aforesaid associates, is the reports 
of the other auditors. 

Our on the consolidated financial statements, and 
our report on Other and Regulatory 

is not modified in respect of the above matters with 
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 
the other auditors and the financial statements certified by 
the Managen 

Requirements 

I. As 

on Other Legal and l"<:gwawr 

required 	 of the Act. we report 
that: 

We have and obtained all the information 
and explanations which to the best ofour lUIVWIClIi)C 

and belief were necessaly for the purposes of our 
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial 
stateluents. 

proper boob ofaccount as required 
to the of the aforesaid 

consolidated financial statements have been 
the Company so far as it appears from our 

examination ofthose boob 

(c) 	The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
ofProfit and Loss, and the Consolidated 

Cash Flow Statement dealt with this Report are 
in agreement with the boob ofaccount. 

In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated financial 
staternents with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) 	On the basis of the written 
received from the directors of the Company as on 
31"March 2023 
Directors 
incorporated in India and the reports ofthe statutory 

taken on record by the Board of 
r()tnn~nv and its associate 

auditors ofits associate companies 
India none of the directors of the 

\,\(!ith respect to of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of 
and the ofsuch 
our separate report in Annexure which is based 
on the auditor's reports of the Company and its 

report expresses an 
adequacy and 
financial 

opinion on the 
effectiveness of the in ternal 

of those 

associate companies incorporated in India. Our 

the Auditor's in accordance with the 
requirements of section 16) of the Act, as 
amended: 

and to the best ofour information 
to the to us, the 

company has not made any payments 
which are covered under section 197 read with 
Schedule V of the Act, 2013. 

With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor's Report in accordance with the 

(Audit and 
and to the best of 

Rule 11 of the 

our information and to the explanatiolls 
to us: 

1I1 

to the consolidated financial statements. 

1I. 	 Provision has been made in the consolidated 
financial statements, as required under the 
applicable 
material foreseeable losses, on 
contracts including derivative contracts. 

iii. There has been no 
to the Investor 

and Protection Fund the 
Company and its associate companies 

in India. 

or accounting standards, for 
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IV. 	 ""m,o"r've Managements of the 
and its associates which are 

in whose 
financial statements have been audited 
under the have represented to us 
to the best of theif Imowledge and 
funds (which are material either 
or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 
loaned or invested from borrowed 
funds or share 
or kind 

whether recorded in or othervvise, 
that the shall, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

behalfof the Holding 
any of such associates 

or any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

in whose 
statements have been audited 

under the Act, have fPrlrP<PrlrPcl 

to the best of their 
funds are material either 

have been received by 
any ofsuch associates from 

any person or entity 
("Funding the 

or the Company or any 
such associates shall, directly or 
lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or any guarantee, 

the like on behalf ofthe Ultimate 
Beneficiaries 

Based on the audit that have 
been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances by us on 
the Holding and its associates 
which are companies incorporated in India 
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whose financial statements have been 
audited under nothing has come to 
our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the under sub-clause (i) and 
(ii) of Rule 11 as under (a) and 

contain any material 
misstatement. 

The final dividend proposed in the 
year, declared and by the 

the year and the interim dividend 
declared and by the 

the year and until the date of this report 
are in compliance with Section 123 of the act. 

Further, the Board ofDirectors ofthe Company 
have Drooosed final dividend for the year which 

to the approval of the members at the 
~ General The amount 

of dividend proposed is in accordance with 
section 123 as applicable 

2. 	 With respect to the 
and40fthe . 
(the "Order"! "CARO") 
Government in terms ofSection J4j~ 1 

be included in the Auditor's report, to the 
information and to us, and based 
on the CARO reports issued 
and its associates included in the consolidated financial 

to which under 
we report that there are no 
remarks in these CARO reports. 

AUDIT TRAIL 

Proviso to Rule 3 
Rules, 2014 for 

software which has a feature 
audit trial log )facility is to the Com­
pany with effect from 1st 2023 accordingly, re-

under Rule 11 (g (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules is not applicable for the finan­
cial year ended March 31,2023. 

For SURI & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm No.004283S 

G. 

Chennai Membership No. 219922 
09.08.2023 UDIN: 23219922BGWKTH1851 



reporting 
conditions, or 

of controls, 

because of 

Midland Rubber & Produce Company 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of 
Sub-section 3 ofSection 143 of the 2013 ("the 
Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements of the as of and for the ended 
31-March-2023 we have the internal controls 
over finacial of The Midland Rubber & Produce 
Company refered to as The 
Company)' and it's subsidiary and associate comoanies which 

in India as of 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The remectlve Board of Directors of the holdine: comoanv and 

the safeguarding 
aecec[)on of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and of the records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
under the Com panies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

is to express an on the Company's 
controls over based on our 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contl'Ols over Financial 

issued by lCAl and the 
lCAl 
the 

maintained 
respects. 

to obtain audit 

system over financial 
Our audit of internal 
included 

the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and tes the and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected on the auditor's including 
the assessment of the of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud 01' error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting. 

Meaning ofInternal Financial Controls over Finallcial Reporting 

financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, including the of collusion or 

procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

Chennai 

09.08.2023 
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material 
occur and not be 

of' the internal 
to fu tu re are 
control over financial 

in 
with the or 

For SURl & CO, 
Chartered Accoun tants 

Firm No.004283S 

respects, an aaequarc 
financial 

G. l'C;UJ!.dld.-Id.H 



Current Assets 
(a) 	 Currenr Investments 9 6,421.25 7, 1.19 
(b) 	 Inventories 1 1 469.93 1.04 

Trade Receivables 12 313.70 100.98 
Cash and Cash 13 	 318.50 

(e) 	 Short - term Loans and advances 14 

Significant Accounting Policies 

TOTAL 


See IJdUVIIl!! notes to the financial statements 

Vide our report ofeven date attached 

For SURI & CO. For and on behalfof the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's No.004283S 

G. Rengarajan S. Ganesan Ajit 
Place; Parmer Director Chairman 
Date: No. 219922 DIN; 08588380 DIN; 00018691 
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for the 

s 

Figures for the 

Particulars Notes year ended 31.03.2023 year ended 31.03.2022 

Rs. inlakhs Rs. inlakhs 

Revenue from operations 15 5,259.27 5,055.74 

II Other income 16 417.78 560.49 

III Total Income 5,677.05 5,61 

N Expenses: 

Cost ofmaterial consumed 1 953.65 988.00 

Purchase ofStock-in-Trade 18 1.16 0.77 

in Inventory ofFinished goods, 
work in progress and stock-in-trade 9 82.57 

20Other 

benefits expenses 

920.57 

21 

1 

2,501.24 

Finance costs 22 1.66 1.37 

and amortisation expense 35 474.07 223.06 

23 509.17 


Total expenses 


1.45 

V and extraordinary items and tax 54.10 428.74 

VI 34 566.04 

VII 

VIII Profit Before Tax (V-VI-VII) 994.78 

IX Tax 

Current tax 200.00 260.00 

Deferred tax 16.63 12.00 

Add: Share ofprofit/(loss) ofAssociate companies 3,001.48 

Add: Minority Interest 

X ProHt AfterTax 

XI 
533.11 957.18 

533.11 957.18 

Policies 

Profit before pvrpntir.n,> 

items 

per ordmary share - Rs. 10 

See notes to the financial statements 

Vide our report ofeven date attached 

For SURI & CO. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered Accountants 

Firm's Registration No. 004283S 

G. Rengarajan s. Ajit Thomas 
Partner Director Chairman 

No. 219922 DIN : 08588380 DIN: 00018691 
Place: 
Date: 
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31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs 

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit Before Tax and Items 3,430.35 

for : 

474.08 223.06 
Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance 1.70 2.84 
Profit /(Loss) on sale ofAsset ( 1.98) 
Profit on sale ofInvestmems (329.23) 
Provision for 62.66 
Provision for Leave Encashmem 2.59 
Interest Received (25.50) 
Dividend f Investment income Received (29. 
Interest Paid 1.20 0.79 
Dimunition in value ofInvestmems 31.95 10.87 

Profit Before Working Capital 

ofBearer Plants 

Trade and other Receivables (21 209.96 

Inventories (38.89) 49.40 
Trade 25.59 (86.76) 

Other Current Assets 2,1 (2,009.1 

Cash Generated From Ooerations 4,542.53 668.92 

Direct Taxes Paid 

Cash Flow Before Items 

Items Nil 

Net Cash From Operating Activities 4.428.80 16.93 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

of Plant and 

Sale Plant and 4.00 

Purchase ofInvestments (3,023.49) (7.700.57) 

Sale ofInvesunents (Net OfTaxes ) 1,524.42 

Sale ofRubber Trees (Net (11.52) 

Inr~r~sr Rt'r~ive:rl 25.50 42.18 

/ Investment income Received 358.38 466.26 

Net From/(Used In) Invt'stilllJ Activities (4,992.94) 984.71 
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For the year ended 31st March 2023 - Contd. 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Interest Paid 

Dividend Paid 

Net Cash Used In FinancingActivities 

Net Decrease In Cash And Cash Equivalents 

Cash And Cash Equivalents - At The Beginning OfThe Year 

Cash And Cash Equivalents - AtThe End OfThe Year 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

Vide our report ofeven date attached 

For SURI & CO. 
Chartered AccQuntants 

Firm's Registration No. 004283S 

G. Rengarajan 
Place: Chennai Partner 
Date: 09.08.2023 Membership No. 219922 

Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs 

(1.20) 

(486.35) 

(487.55) 

(1,051.69) 

(0.79) 

(291.81) 

(292.60) 
-- ­

1,109.04 

1,128.38 

76.69 

(1,051.69) 

19.34 

1,128.38 

1,109.04 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Ajit Thomas 
Director Chairman 

DIN: DIN: 00018691 
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NOTE: 1 

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The is a public limited company and domiciled in India the year 1937 and has its 
registered office at Panampilly Kochi, India. The Company is and the crop dealt with 

the company Rubber Cardamom. The main business being and sales ofTea, Rubber and 
Cardamom. 

I. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The consolidated financial statements are and in accordance with Indian 

2014. 

under the histOrical cost convention on the accrual basis. GAAP comprises manaaror 
under Section 133 of the Act. 2013 (Act') read with Rule 7 of the 

II. CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION 

All assets and liabilities has been classified as current or non-current as per the 
and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the Act. 

normal months) 

III. PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION 

The financial statements of The Midland Rubber & Produce Limited is consolidated with its SUDSlmar 
Latex Products Limited (88.05% shareholding) and Associates a) AVT Natural Products Limited 
AVT McCormick Ingredients Private Limited and c) Midland 
Limited (32.89% 

This is the fourth year of subsidiary consolidation 
Associates are entities over which the group has 

line consolidation as per Standard 21. 
influence but not control. Investments in associates are accounted for 

the eQuity method ofaccountine: as laid 23, "Accounti 
Consolidated Financial Statements". The investment is at cost, and the amount is increased or 

the investor's share ofprofit or loss of the investee after the date. The e:roup's investment in 
Associates includes e:oodwill identified on 

Iv. PLANT AND 

a) Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost less 
cost model. 

and accumulated impairment loss based on 

The cost ofan item and equip men t is as an asset when: 

L it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the and 

11. the cost of the item can be measured reliably 

does not include GST credit is available), freight and other direct or allocated expenses 
income earned. Assets aCQuired on Hire Purchase are caDitalized at orinciDal value. 

b) Direct cxpenQl[ ofTealRubber ICard am om attributable to bringing the to the condition 
in the manner intended by management Jess Subsidy on replanting of Teal 

c) 
uepreClau::u using 

Act 2013, except Assets at 100 %. The 
residual value is considered at 5 % ofthe 
sold during the period is proportionately 

plant and equipment are than bearer plants (rubber 
trees, tea bushes and cardamom plants) which are over the estimated lIsefullives 
of the assets, which are different from the lives Act. 2013 
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costs 

of the COSt of the asset, upto the date 

expense as and when incurred. A 

OUN S 

: 1 (contd.) 

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

the Company for bearer 

years) 

12 

30 

50 

d) assets amortized over their individual useful lives on straight line 
 from the 
asset is available to the company its use. and Amortization 


value are reviewed periodically, including at each year end. 


V. 	 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

reviews the carrying amounts ofits assets for any possible impairment at each balance sheet date. An 
when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount and the 

in the Statement ofProfit and Loss. 

loss. 

VI. 	 BORROWING COSTS 

construction or production ofqualifYing assets are capitalised as part 

ofconstruction. Other borrowing costS recognised as 

asset is an asset that necessarily reauires a substantial period of time to get 

for its intended use ofsale. 

VII. INVESTMENTS 

Investments are stated at cost. Decline in value term other than temporary, is for. 

Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value. Investment in immovable Droperties is stated at cost less 

VIII. INVENTORIES 

Inventories are valued at lower ofCOSt on average and net realisable after providing for obsolescence wherever 

considered necessary. COSt includes tax (other than GST credit is available), freight and other direct expenses. 

IX. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

Revenue is recognized on accrual and when no significant on or collectabiliry exists. Expenditure 

is accounted for on theif accruaL 

SALE OF GOODS 

Revenue from sale of goods is when all the significant risks and rewards of the goods have been 

to the buyer, on delivery of the The company collects GST on behalfofthe government and, 

these are not economic benefits flowing to the company. they are excluded from revenue. 

INTEREST 

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis into account the amount and the 

interest tate. Interest income is included under the head "Other income" in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

DIVIDENDS 


mcomelS 
 when the company's to receive dividend is established by the date. 
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ES N S 


1 (contd.) 

A. ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

X EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Liability which is a benefit scheme and for Leave Encashment is accrued and orovided for on the 

basis of independent actuarial valuation based on projected unit credit method made at the end of each tmanCial year. 

Actuarial gains and losses are in the Statement ofProfit and Loss and are not deferred. 

Retirement benefits in the form ofProvidem Fund, Family Pension Fund and annuation Schemes. which are defined 

when the comribution to the resoective fund contribution schemes are chan>:ed to (he statement ofProfit & Loss 

accrues. 

XI. FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS 

Foreign are recorded at the rates 
of fOlward contracts, the difference between forward rate and 
Statement ofProfie and Loss on the of the transaction. 

rate on the date of transaction is dealt with in the 
items denominated in foreie:n currency and 

outstanding at the Balance Sheer date are converted at the year end t"'''HdH~C 
in the Statement ofProfit and Loss. 

is dealrwith 

XII. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 

Subsidies from Government in respect of fixed assets are deducted fi'om the cost of respective assets as and when accrue. 

CCUglllSCU in the StatememSubsidies related to revenue are 
they ate intended to compensate. 

and Loss to match them with the related costs which 

XIII. TAXES ON INCOME 

Provision for Income-Tax is made for both currene and deferred tax. Provision for current income tax is made on the 
assessable income at the tax rate to the relevant assessment year. Deferred tax is accounted for by the 
t~'C effect of the timing difference which arise during the year and revetse out in the subsequent periods. Deferred tax is 
calculated at the tax rates enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recoQ:nized only if there is 
a virtual certainrv that they will be realized. 

XIN. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic pet share ate calculated by dividing the net 
(after deducting dividends and attributable wenmu::u average number 
during the period. average number ofequity shares during the period is for events such 
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue. share split, and reverse share (consolidation ofshares) that have 
the number ofequity shares outstandine:. withollt a 

For the purpose diluted earnings per share. the net 
and the weighted average number ofshares outstanding during the 
equity shares. 

In resources. 

or loss fot tbe petiod attributable to 

ate adjusted for the effects ofall dilutive uuu::nll<U 

xv. PROVISIONS 

C"Vi',lUiX;U when the company has a presem as a result ofpasr event, it is thar an outflow 
benefits will be to settle the and a reliable estimate can be made of the 

Provisions ate not discounted ro their presem and detetmined based on the best estimate 

requi red to settle at the rmoHine: date. These estimate are reviews at each reDonine: date and adjusted to reflect 
the current best estimates. 
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: 1 

A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

XVI. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

A is a obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence 
or non-occurrence ofone or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is 
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be to settle the A 
liability also arises in rare cases where there is a that cannot be because it cannot be measured 
reliably. The company does not recognize a liability bur discloses its existence in the financial statements. 

XVII. CONTINGENT ASSETS 

are neither nor disclosed 

XVIII. 	 EXPENDITURE ON NEW PLANTING 

ofdifferent crops than Minor including upkeep and maintenance 
are capitalised under "Development". 

XIX. 	 EXPENDITURE ON REPLANTING 

The and maintenance on immature plants is to the Statement ofProfit and Loss. 

xx DMDEND 

Final dividends on shares are recorded as a liability on the date ofapproval by the shareholders and interim dividends are 
recorded as a on the date ofdeclaration by the COmDany'S Board ofDirectors. 

XXI. 	 CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

Cash Flow Statement is prepared see;fee;atine; the cash flows from activities. Cash flow 
from activities is is adjusted for the 

effects of 


(i) lhnsactions ofa non~cash nature. 


(Ii) or accruals or future operating cash or payments and 


Items of income or expense associated with or cash flows. 

Cash and cash (including bank are reflected as such in Cash Flow Statement. 
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A~at Asat 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lakhs in Lakhs 

NOTE: 2 

SHARE CAPITAL 

a. Authorised 

6,25,000­ Shares of Rs.I0/- each 62.50 62.50 

3,75,000­ 6 % Cumulative Preference Shares of Rs.lO/- each 37.50 37.50 

100.00 100.00 

b. Issued. Subscribed and Paid up 

3,89,083.50 - Shares of Rs.l 0/- each. 38.91 38.91 

c. 	 Reconciliation of Shares at the beginnig 
and at the end of the retJ'nrt~n(l 

Number of Shares at the of the year 3,89,083.50 9,083.50 

Add I Less : Shares Issued I buyback etc Nil Nil 

Number of shares at the end of the year 3,89,083.50 3, 83.50 

d. 	 Details of Shareholders more than 5% 
shares 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
Name of Shareholder No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding 

Mr. Ajit Thomas 	 3,1 81 3,1 81.64 

e. No bonus shares / Buy back of shares in last 5 years 

f The company has issued only one class of shares which is shares. Each holder of Equity Shares is entitled for 
one vot:e in proPortion to the number of shares held 

g. Shares reserved under option and contract / commitments for sale 

h. 	 The aggregate value of calls unpaid (including Directors and Officers 

t. 	 Discwsure of Promoters Shareholding Pattern 

at 31 st March 2023 

Promoter Name No. of 
(lIo of total shares 

shares held 

Mr. 3, 81.65 % 

/ disinvestments Nil (Nil) 


Company) Nil (Nil) 


As at 31 st March 202 


No.of 

% of total shares the year 

3,17,646 

shares held 

81.64 % 0.01 % 
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: 3 

RESERVES AND SURPLUS 

Share Premium Account 

As per last Balance Sheet 27.20 27.20 

Capital Reserve 

As per last Balance Sheet 26.79 26.79 

Rubber Reserve 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Add: Sale Proceeds of Rubber Trees 

Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance Provided 

1.00 

1.70 

2.70 1.00 

Gener'al Reser/Ie 

As per last Balance Sheet 

Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss Account 

17,901.70 

17,901.70 17,901.70 

Profit for the 

Add: Interest 

Less: Goodwill on consolidation 

UlUu~m forward from prevIOus year 

2,152.15 

0.01 

(0.96) 

15,810.58 

17,961.78 

13,378.00 

17,102.39 

Add: 

As at As at 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs 

Less: L)CPC;IlLlILUtC; 

Transfer to General Reserve 1,000.00 

shares Rs. 75/- per share 
291.81 194.54 

shares Rs. 50/- per share 
194.54 97.27 

17,475.43 15,810.58 

35,498.94 33,832.45 

Rs. per Share) 

for 2022-23- Paid on 
per Share) 
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http:33,832.45
http:35,498.94
http:15,810.58
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c 

As at Asar 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs 

NOTE: 4 

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 

a. 	 Long Tenn Provisiom (Note 32) 

Provi,ion for Employee 

For 

For Leave Encashment 13.30 11.75 

1.3.30 11.75 

NOTE: 5 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

a. 	 Short - Term borrowiufTS - From Bauk Secured 

The Company's 
of Rs. 
Standing and 

facilities 
1)50,00)000) secured by hunMhE'r, 

Vehicles and also equitable mortgage of the Estates Land together 

with thereon. Nil Nil 


The loans have not been by Directors or others. 


Period and amount ofdefault as on 31st March 2023 NIL (PY. 


b. 	 Trade rayatJ/R 

(Refer Note.No. 26 for Details of dues to micro and small enterprises) 
29.71 8.78 

basis collected the management. This has been relied 
upon by the auditors. 

and Small Enterprises 	 1 297.57 

Related Parties 54.44 

Other 365.51 243.13 

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterorises and Small Enterorises and 

The amount due to Micro and Small 
Small and Medium 

as defined in "The 
Act, 2006" has 

to the extent such parties have been identified on the 

Total outstandine: dues ofCreditors other than 

100 



T 

As at A'iat 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rupees in Lakhs in Lakhs 

The trade ageing scheduJe is as follows : 

Particulars 

(i) MSME 

MSME 

dues Others 

Paniculars 

(i) MSME 

dues-MSME 

dues - Others 

Less than 1 year 

1 
29.71 

338.38 

Nil 

Nil I 

Less than 1 year 

8.78 

277.22 

Nil 

Nil 

periods from due date 
as on 31st March 2023 

1 -2 years 2-3 years More [nan 3years i Not Due 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Nil Nil Nil 27.13 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Nil Nil Nil Nil 
I 

from due date ofpayment 
as on 31st March 2022 

1 -2 years 2-3 years 

Nil ! Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

-

More than 3 years Not Due 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

20.35 

Nil 

Nil 

Total 

29.71 

365.51 

Nil 

Nil 

Total 

297.57 

Nil 

Nil 

c. Other Current Litlbilities 

Advance from Customers 

d 	 Short Telm Provisions 

Provision Employee 

For Leave Encashment 

For Gratuity 

Other Provisions: 
For laxation 

: ( Note No. 33) 

205.58 

33.96 

20.00 

3.85 

326.40 

350.51 

680.76 

13.93 

20.00 

50.33 

322.88 

335.96 

602.51 

101 

8.78 

2.81 
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GROSS 	 DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK 

As at Additions For U;Jto As at 

.04.2022 31 1032022 year 3L32023 32023 


Rs. in lakhs Rs. lakhs in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs Rs. 


30.12 30.12 30.12 
14339 30.12 30.12 173.51 

138.79 	 138.79 138.79 
138.79 138.79 138.79 

4, 351.64 251.32 602.96 10 164.06 
6.72 	 343.68 1467 6.72 16406 130.57 

1,738.38 1,237.00 108.28 393.10 427.64 
88.92 1,23701 42764 

330.10 110.73 48.83 	 170.54 126.51 

Freehold Land 

4815 
73.73 
13708 

Furniture li.nd 237.24 92.86 
194.00 43.24 23724 38.38 126.51 121.65 

Electrical Installations 113.16 113.16 90.59 96.05 17.11 22.57 
83.09 750 	 90.59 22.57 30.08 

o 
N Vehicles 	 373.34 7.80 13.19 367.95 187.82 11.17 233.07 134.88 185.52 

199.71 110.91 37334 178.41 65.11 55.70 18782 185.52 
Bearer Plants 12.07 22.10 34.17 4.83 1.60 6.43 27.74 7.24 

12.07 12.07 	 4.83 724 

Total 

Previous Year 

" Previous have been shown in 

Notes: Includes Rs.1.38 and Rs.12.33 lacs resnprr;u", 

amounted to Rs.l.38 and Rs. 0.62 lacs 

The does not hold lease hold 

13.19 471.91 

219.41 

of Land and bUIldmgs m 

11.17 

with other 

1) 1 

1,080.21 

the value of which 

CAPITAL WORK PROGRESS 

In_nr('\O'rl'''o;,:.;: whose 

Amoum in CWIP for of2021 22 

To[al<1-2Less than 1 year 2-3 years 	 [More than 3 years 

29.90 25.54 34.75 174.66 

overdue or has exceeded irs to its 

http:1,237.00
http:1,738.38
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:8 
IN\1lSTMENTS COST 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 3 L03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares! units Rs. in lakhs shares! units Rs. inlakhs 

l. INVESTMENTS CURRENT INSTRUMENTS: 

AYT PrOdUct! Ltd 10,120.88 

Share of Profit for the year 

Less Dividend Income 


Neelamalai agro Industries Ltd 28,545 833.47 11,527 408.58 4,003 117.91 36,069 1,124.l4-0 
Vol 

Ltd 1,612 22.53 1,612 22.53 

Fertilisers & Petro Chemicals 
Nitrite Ltd (Rs. 2lshare) 

Ltd (Rs. 11share) 628 20.02 628 20.02 
10,000 280.04 280.04 

39 2.45 39 
ltd 455 2.50 455 2.50 

131 2.49 13 2.49 
ICrCr Bank Ltd (Rs. 2!share) 369 2.49 369 2.49 
Larsen & Toubr~ Ltd (Rs. 2lshare) 149 2.49 149 2.49 
Persistant Ltd 61 2.46 2.46 
Tata Chemicals Ltd 297 2.49 297 
Tata Motors Ltd (Rs. 2lshare) 2.50 619 2.50 
Tata Power Ltd (Rs. 1,132 1,132 

14,122.20 408.5!! 117,91 

In Structured Debt Products 

Finance Ltd 50 424.66 50 424.66 

http:14,122.20
http:1,124.l4
http:10,120.88


C O N SO L IDATE D N O T ES FO RM I N G P AR T 
of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023 (contd.)

NOTE: 8 (Contd. . .) 

NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS (LONG TERM) - VALUED AT COST 


As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

Description No.of 
shares/units 

Amount 
Rs . in lakhs 

No.of 
shares/uni ts 

Amount 
Rs. in lakhs 

No.of 
shares/units 

Amount 
Rs . in lakhs 

No.of 
shares/units 

Amount 
Rs . in lakhs 

0 
.j:;. 

(ii) UNQUOTED : 
In Equity Instruments: 

A VThomas Investments Co Ltd 
AVT McCormick Ingredients Private Ltd 
(Associate Company) (*) 
Share of profit for the year 
Less: Dividend Income 

Mid land Corporate Advisory Services Pvt Ltd 
(Associate Company) (* ) 
Share of profit for the year 

L. J. International Ltd (* .) 
The NelliampathyTea & Produce Co Ltd 

24,500 

58,50,000 

2,50,000 

428 
46,498 

2.45 

5,576.37 
843.21 

(234.00) 
6,185.58 

7.73 
9.96 

17.69 

197.03 

24,500 

58,50,000 

2,50,000 

428 
46,498 

2.45 

6,185.58 
108.59 

(234.00) 
6,060.17 

17.69 
8.42 

26.1 1 

197. 03 

In Structured Debt Products (Unquoted): 

HOB Financial Services Ltd 
Oddity Health Care Pvt Ltd (CCPS ) 
Oddity Health Care Pvt Ltd (CCD) 

50 504.08 

6,906.83 

232 
1,50,000 

100.15 
150.00 

250.1 5 

50 
232 

1,50,000 

504.08 
100.l5 
150.00 

7, 039.99 
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COST 
As on 01.04.2022 Additions 	 Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs 

2. 	 PREFERENCE SHARES 
Beer Works Resraurants and 

300 189.75 300 189.75 
Virohan Pvt Ltd 74 166 

3. 	 IN 
Value of Land 106.30 106.30 

and 106.28 106.28 
f)"znr,zr;"'It';""'" 

<:) 
In 

TOTAL 708.81 

investments 	 16,580.68 
38,088.75 Lakhs- Previous year 

AJ2;grleg,lte amount of Unquoted Investments 	 7,039.99 
AJ2;grle~lte amount of Unquoted Preference Investments 	 289.78 239.70 

immovable nrnnpM';p< 

123.03 
Less: depreciation on Immovable property 

The to transfer shares is restricted under Section 2 ofthe Act 2013, Private Limited "'-OIDPames. 
Face Value ofEouitv Shares is Rs. 10/­

The Bonus shares as per Section 63 ofthe Act 20 hence no cost incurred for 

http:7,039.99
http:38,088.75
http:16,580.68
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As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares/1.l.l1its Rs. in lills shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lills shares/units Rs. in fills 

I. INVESTMENTS IN CURRENT INSTRUMENTS: 
(I) 
In 

Credit Access Grameen Lrd 

Linde India Ltd 

Aavas Financiers Ltd 

Abb India Ltd 

Abbott India Ltd 

L 
c 
C" Pharma Ltd 

Alembic Pharmaceuticals Ltd 

Ltd 

Ltd 
Arvind Fashions Ltd 

Asian Paints Ltd 

Astral Ltd 

Atul Ltd 

Axis Ban k Ltd 

Finanace Ltd 

rinserv Ltd 

Balktisbna Industries Ltd 

Bank OfBaroda 

Bharti Aireel 

Blue Dart Exoress 

65 


4 


525 


64 


40 


43 

I) 17 5 


288 


93 


15 


21 


56 

18 


9 


500 


291 


23 


50.8 

.57 


0.73 

1.07 

1.22 

0.30 

1.27 

3.96 

0.83 

2,87 

3.28 

1.86 

9.71 

1.27 

1.49 

0.51 

2.06 

1.50 

288 


20 


7 


490 


78 


357 


1,397 

105 

i ~4 

255 


37 


38 


28 


105 


299 


40.05 

50.8 

6.10 

0.67 

1.22 

1 


0,83 

1.22 

9,9 

4,60 

3,20 

O}O 
1.06 

4,88 

2.42 

12.60 

1.70 



: 9 (Contd. .} 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares! uni ts RE. in lakhs shares! units Rs. in lakhs shares! uni ts Rs. in lakhs shares/units RE. in lakhs 

Can 65 3.85 

Canara Bank 706 1.52 1.78 

Cauhn Homes 5.10 

Cd Products I Ltd 132 0.67 

173 1.48 154 1.26 

Cera Ltd 46 2.42 
Power And Industrial Solutions Ltd 343 0.87 

Sanimar Ltd 145 0.85 

0 Chennai Petroleum Lt 342 0.81 
~J 

Cholamandalam Investment And Finance Ltd 3.13 

Ltd 1. 
Info 192 1, 

1,021 1.89 
Ltd 23 1.25 48 2.27 

Container Oflndia Ltd 117 0.89 
Co[omandel International Ltd 438 3.38 300 2.32 

Greaves Consumer Electricals Ltd 971 4.02 7.96 
Ltd 217 2.19 255 2.39 

DCB Ltd ,292 1.03 
Shriram Ltd 08 1.04 

2.81 
Ltd 20 

Dr Lal Ld 2. 509 
Dwarikesh lndusrries Ltd [, [25 1.16 3,239 3.38 
Eclerx Services Ltd 59 0.74 



c 

: 9 .l'>n1'/1 .)I 

AT LOWER 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares/units Rs. in lills shares/units Rs. in lills shares/units Rs. in lills shares / uni ts Rs. in lills 

Eicher Motors Ltd 

Ltd 

Eureka Forbes Limited 

Fairchem Ltd 

FOC Ltd 

Federal Bank 

Five·Star Business Finance Ltd 

g FSN E·Commerce Ventures Ltd 

Ltd 

GMM Pfaudler Ltd 

. Consumer Products Ltd 

Granules India Ltd 

Industries Ltd 

Grindwell Nonon Ltd 

HOFC Bank Ltd 

HOFC Life Insurance Ltd 

HOPC Standard Life Insurance Ltd 

HIL Ltd 

Hindalco Industries Ltd 

Hindustan Aeronautics Ltd 

Hindustan Petroleum COrDorarion Ltd 

19 

83 

539 

62 

41 

224 
4Q 

854 

54 
398 

18 

08 

111 

72 

59 

0.48 
1.82 

1.53 

1.56 

1.12 

1.2 

0.42 

1.78 

5.51 

3.64 

0.99 

2.35 

2.10 

2.80 

0.92 

1.33 

38 0.97 

1.71 

283 0.89 
1 1 1.89 

5,112 4.53 

29 O. 

88 5.46 

312 055 

55 6.20 

156 1.32 

1,085 3.66 

6.02 

234 4.06 

541 3.15 

604 8.94 

89 0.49 
37 0.82 
97 3.56 

384 1.80 

67 1.65 

1.12 



co PART 
of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023 (contd.)

:9 .J 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

Description No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares! units Rs. in lakhs shares/ units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares! units Rs. in lakhs 

Hindustan Unilever Ltd 43 0.97 

Honeywell Automation India Ltd I 0.41 
I D F C Ltd 4,480 2.43 
ICICI Bank Ltd 1,992 14.63 1,358 9.95 
ICICI Lombard General linsurance Company Ltd 147 1.9 [ 452 5.51 
ICICI Securities Ltd 294 2.20 778 4.54 
IDFC Ltd 4,634 2.52 

IIFL Finance Ltd 1,009 3.00 1,418 4.32 
IIFL Wealth Ltd Demerger 4[ 0.6[~ 

co 
'D Indiamart Intermesh Ltd 0.25 

Indian Energy Exchang 855 1.24 
Indigo Paints Ltd 83 1.62 

Info Edge India Ltd 41 1.98 [12 4.35 
Infosys Ltd 29[ 5. [8 252 4.47 
Intellect Design Arena Ltd 62 0.44 
Ion Exchange Ltd 23[ 4.50 208 3.79 
IIC Ltd 736 1.68 760 1.86 
Jindal Stainless Ltd 1,838 2.84 
Jubilant Ingrevia Ltd 328 1. 61 564 2.74 
Kewal Kiran Clothing Ltd [72 0.85 
Kirloskar Oil Engines Limited 58 [ 1.47 
KNR Constructions Ltd 98 0.29 
Kolte Pati! Developers Ltd O. [553 561 1.35 
Kopran Ltd 1,076 2.9 [ 1,640 4.22 
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd 25 0.46 142 2.49 
Larsen Ioubro Ltd 73 1.36 2[5 4.33 
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T 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions 	 Deductions As on 31,03.2023 

No.of Amount No,of AmOUnt No.of Amount No.of Amount 
shareslurnts Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. 

Lemontree Hotels 

LnT Services Ltd 

Maharashrrl Seamless Ltd 

Mahindra & Resort India 

Ref Petrochemicals 

Marut! Suzuki India Ltd 

Mastek Ltd 

Max Financial Services Ltd 

Healthcare Ltd 

Motherson Sum! India Ltd 

MatiIal Oswal Financial Services 

Ltd 

Limited 

Natco Pharma Ltd 

National Mineral Dev Ltd 

Navin Fluorine International Ltd 

Nestle India Ltd 

NIlT Ltd 

NLC India Limited 

Ltd 

NTPCLtd 

Oil And Natural Gas Corp Ltd 

Orade Financial Services Software Ltd 

Orient Electric Limited 

38 

428 


110 


926 

21 


1 


546 


29 

1,50 


106 


58 


147 


321 


23 


9 

223 


150 


1,105 


836 


63 


2,301 1.54 

242 8.37 

2.27 	 608 0.96 
0.23 	 574 1.31 

0.41 

1.61 	 29 2.18 

3.46 	 150 3.90 

429 3.21 

0.90 

0.81 	 1.12 

0.97 	 0.96 
1.89 

217 0.65 
0.80 	 83 1.24 

0.95 	 19 4.74 
2.58 	 411 2.85 

940 0.52 
0,84 25 0,92 
3.60 20 3.65 
0,96 1 l.81 

2,014 1.48 
0,35 

1.51 	 1,132 1.56 
1.36 	 755 118 

2.43 23 0.76 

607 1.62 
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c 

Tata Communication, 

Tata Elxsi Ltd 

Tata Motors Ltc 

Tata Steel Ltd 

Ltd 

Tube Investments of India 
tv 

Financid Seuices Ltd 

Ul tra Teen Cemen t ud 

India Limited 

United ltd 

UPL 

Uti Asset 

Vuun ltd 

Vedant Fashiom Ltd 

V-Mart Retail L:d 

Wipro Ltd 

Zee EntertainmEnt 

Zensar Ltd, 

One Warn Ltd, P:ev, Wealth Ltd 

3M India Ltd 

Diminution in Value 
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As on 01.04.2022 Additions 	 Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares/units Rs. inlakhs shares/ units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/ units Rs. in lakhs 

In Mutual Funds- Debt: 

ICICI Prudential Flexible Income- Plan·Growth 1,57,892 606.11 475.89 130.22 

lDFC 133.12 133.12 

Birla Sun Fund 8.24 8.24 


Growth 56.40 56.40 


1,33,150 55,919 2,170.15 77,231 2,997.23 

ICICI Pm 68.00 

[CICI Pm Growth 22,251 66.98 1,91,801 601.60 38,99 124,68 

ICICI Pm Overnibht 160.16 33,220 160.16 

Fund 9,195 10.56 53,171 61.94 

2,071 72.50 305 10.56 

Baroda BNP Parib,s GILT·G 5,69,860 200.00 200,00 

34.45 

Direct Growth 795 39.00 795 
HDFC Market· Growth 788 38.00 518 24.98 270 13,02 
ICICI Pm ConstaLt GILT Growth 9,88,513 200.00 

90.00 90,00 

10,80,531 200.00 10,80,5}1 

Direct Plan Growth 1,022 39.00 1,022 39.00 
Growth 343 13.00 

52.00 52.00 
1,086 38,00 600 20.99 486 17.01 

fund 	 13,57,309 200,00 13,57,309 200.00 
1,38,880 52.00 1,38,880 52.00 
1.07.740 38.00 59,563 21.01 

DSP Savim>;s·Gro>lth 

Market Direct Growth 

Growth 

Market Scheme 

Market Direct Growth 

Market Growth 

Direct· Growth 

Growth 

http:2,997.23
http:2,170.15
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9 (Contd... ) 

As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares/ units Rs. inlakhs shares/ units Rs. in lakhs shares/ units Rs. inlakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs 

In Mutual Funds-

Birla SL Flexi Direct Growth 28.18 28.18 

Birla SL Flexi Growth 8.70 768 8.70 

HDFC small cap Direcr - Growth 27.46 27.46 

HDFC 11,778 8.18 11,778 8.18 

Kotak Fund Direcr GroMh 45,024 25.99 

s,46 

32,055 27.33 32,055 27.33 

10,580 8.19 10,580 8.19 

Direct Plant 25,037 80.00 

16.20 16.20 

1,09,573 14.74 14.74 
SBI NIFTY Index Growth 14.74 14.74 
HDPC Focused 30 Direct· Growth 1,478 2.11 
HDFC Focused 30 Growth 544 0.70 544 0.]0 

IClcr Pm India Oooortunities Fund Direct·G 10,175 2.11 10,175 2.1 1 

Kotak Flexicao Fund ReI!. Growth 

Midcap 150 Index Fund 



T 
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CURRENT AT LOWER 


As on 01.04.2022 Additions Deductions As on 31.03.2023 

No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount No.of Amount 

shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs shares/units Rs. inlakhs shares/units Rs. in lakhs 

ICICI 0.70 

ICICI 100 Index Fund Direct Growth 23,231 2.1 2,11 

ICICI Pm 100 Index Fund Growth 7,800 0.70 0,70 

ICICI Pru 5 & P BSE 500 ETF FOF Direct Growth 2,81 2,8! 
>--' 
V1 

ICICI 5 & PBSE 500 ETF FOF Growth 0,94 0,94 

India NIFTY 150 Index Direct· Growth 2,81 2.81 

SBr Index Direct·G 1,821 2.81 

in Value 


.-b203.69
--,-, 

In Bonds and Other Funds: 

Gold PIC Series rOct 20 50 500.00 50 500,00 

HD BFinancial Services Ltd 50 513.94 50 
I ata Motor Finance Ltd 509,27 50 



As at As at 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
in Lakhs in Lakhs 

NOTE: 10 

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 

NOTE: 11 

INVENTORIES 

(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value) 

Scores and 

Estate Nurseries 

Finished Goods 

NOTE: 12 

TRADE RECEIVABLES 

Considered good Unsecured: 

Trade receivable 
the date 

for more than six months from 
payment 

Other receivable" 

"Includes receivables from Related Parties Note 

*Debts due limited in which directors are interested 

The trade receivables schedule is as follows : 

25.54 

2554 


148.61 

Nil 

313.70 

5.92 

21.09 

21.09 

154.71 
0.63 

Nil 

100.98 

100.98 

31.98 

29.10 

Particulars 

([) receivables· considered 

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables· considered doubtful 

(I) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

[w:ivables· considered 

receivables· considered doubtful 

Particulars 

receivables· considered 

Trade receivables· considm:d doubtful Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

j years 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

2-3 

Nil Nil 

Nil Nil 

Nil I Nil 

Nil Nil 

Total 

313.70 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Total 

100.98 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

116 



CONSOLID ATED NOTES FORMING PART 
of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023 (contd.) 

As at Asat 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs 

NOTE: 13 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and stamps on hand 


Bank balances With Scheduled Banks 


In Current Account 


With Scheduled Banks - Earmarked balances with bank 


In Dividend Account 


In Margin money deposit account 


Others held by Solicitor 

Bank deposits with more than 12 months matlll'iry 

NOTE: 14 

SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES 

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received: 

- Debts due by Officers of the Company 


- Others 


Deposits: 

(a) With NABARD under Tea Development Scheme 

(b) With NABARD under Rubber Development Scheme 

Other Loans and Advances: 

Tax payments pending adjustment 


0.82 

75.87 

76.69 

205.58 

36.23 

241.81 

318.50 
-
NIL 

127.22 

6.06 

239.81 

175.40 

548.49 

0.47 

1,127.79 

1,128.26 

213.93 

34.62 

2,160.11 

2,408.66 

3,537.04 

NIL 

151.61 

30.51 

239.81 

247.12 

669.05 

117 

http:3,537.04
http:2,408.66
http:2,160.11
http:1,128.26
http:1,127.79


of Profit and Loss for the year 

For year ended for year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lakhs in Lakhs 

NOTE: 15 

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Sale ofProd ucts 

Tea & Tea Waste 

Rubber 

Other Produce 

Other oDeratine: Income: 

NOTE: 16 

OTHER INCOME 

Income from InvestmentS : 

(i) 

Current 

Profit on Sale ofInvestments : 

(i) 

(ii) Current 

Profit on Sale ofAssets : 

Interest Income on : 

(i) Bank 

Others 

Rent Received 

Insurance Claim Received 

Sale ofScrap 

Exchange 

Dimunition ofInvestments - No longer 

4,139.23 

293.43 

751.19 

18.84 

10.31 

329.23 

1.98 

1.88 

23.62 

0.82 

30.14 

0.40 

0.56 

417.78 

3,648.10 

411.38 

899.08 

88.30 

8.88 

5,055.74 

16.38 

0.92 

448.96 

27.48 

40.45 

0.42 

16.40 

6.79 

0.95 
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NOTES FORMING 
and Loss for the .year ended 31st 

For year ended For year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lakhs in Lakhs 

COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED (Refer Note.24) 

\,.,UlIMIIIlPUUlI ofRaw material­ Leaf 

-Tea 

: 18 

PURCHASE OF STOCK IN TRADE 

Tea 

INCREASE I DECREASE IN INVENTORY 

In1lf'ntfJrv at the of the year: 

Tea 

Rubber 


Cardamom 


in1Jf'nmrv at the end of the year: 

Tea 


Rubber 


Cardamom 


: 20 
OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES 

U"'PUUH ofSrores and Spares (Refer Note.24) 

Power and Fuel 

and Maintenance Plant and Machinery 

21 

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT FXPENSES 

and Bonus 

to Provident and Other Funds 

Provision for (Note No 32) 

Provision for Leave Encashment (Note No. 32) 
Welfare 

951.87 

1.78 

L16 

119.78 

275.70 

130.53 
130.88 

321.32 

463.60 

70.15 

2,375.19 

158.27 

66.14 
2.59 

0.77 

212.66 

62.04 

83.57 
358.27 

119.78 

66.58 
89.34 

275.70 
82.57 

359.82 

497.15 
63.60 

920.57 

161.88 
10.97 

52.52 
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988.00 
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For year ended For year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rupees in Lakhs in Lakhs 

NOTE: 22 

FINANCE COST 

Interest 

Other Cost 

: 23 

OTHER EXPENSES 

Rem and Amenities 

and Maintenance 
Roads and 

Vehides 

Others 

Insurance 


Rates and Taxes 


to Auditors' 

For Audit 

For Certification I Tax Audit 

For Other Services 

Rubber Rehabilitation Allowance 

tisement and Sales Promotion 

Directors' Sitting fees 

Dimunition oflnvestmenrs 

CSR CxpenGl (Note No. 

Donations 

Miscdlaueous 

on foreign currency transaction and translation 

1.20 

0.46 

1.66 

10.42 

66.31 

58.59 
4.46 

18.99 

52.81 

9.00 

4.39 

0.60 

2.85 

1.13 

36.85 
11.41 

52.94 

31.60 

5.61 
6.01 

5.41 

1.70 

0.90 

1.60 

31.96 

60.00 

33.63 

509.17 

0.79 

0.58 

1.37 

32.56 

82.25 

89.51 
4.61 

15.57 

20.73 

9.33 
3.08 

2.40 

1.65 

13.87 

51.60 

22.80 

6.24 

5.97 
1.92 

2.84 

1.03 

1.60 

12.77 

7.64 

35.59 

7.94 

469.91 
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For year ended For year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lakhs in Lakhs 

NOTE: 

PARTICULARS OF CONSUMPTION 

Value ill Rs. ill lakhs 
Rawmaterials 

Leaf 951.87 

Tea 

953.65 

463.60 
Nil 

463.60 

NOTE: 
EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 

a) 

Advance / purchase 

Professional Fee & Others 

Travel 

Rent 

NOTE: 26 

TOTAL OUTSTANDING TO MICRO & SMALL ENTERPRISES 

The information dues to Small and Medium 
(MSMED) 

as 
required under Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise DeveloDl 

2006 as on 31st March 2023 is furnished below: 

The principal amount and the interest due thereon unpaid 
to any as at the end of the year 

(i) 	 Principal 

Interest 

The amount of Interest by the under MSMED Act, 2006 
along with the amounts payments made to the beyond the 

day during each year 

(c) 	 The amount of due and payable for the period the 
but interest under the MSMED 2006 has 

The amount of interest accrued and remaining at the end of 
of the accounting year. 

The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding 
year, until such date when the interest dues as above are paid 
to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductable 

under section 23. 
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% Value in Rs. in lakhs 

100 988.00 

100 988.00 

100 359.82 
Nil 

100 359.82 

1,584.40 

. 52.55 

1.84 

10.32 

29.71 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

% 

100 
-----...----~ 

100 

100 

160.11 

2.20 

2.20 

32.56 

8.78 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

100 
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Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

in Lakhs in Lakhs 

NOTE: 27 

EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Profit I (Loss) after tax 


Number 
 Shares in calculating EPS 

Basic EPS 


Diluted EPS 


NOTE: 28 

CONTINGENT LIABILITY 

a) 	 Sales Tax demands disputed in which Rs. 
paid and included under Loans and Advances 

Income Tax demands 

The future cash outflows on the above items are determinable ollly on 
of the that is pending at various forumsl 

authorities. The Company does not expect the outcome of these 
to have a adverse effect on this financial results. 

b) Contracrs remaining to be executed on Capital Account 

c) The effect from of the 

Court of Kerala. ,,-,onSlocr 

01.04.201 

""r'I\Jlr!pr! 

)~ument of Bonus 

for the additional liability. 

NOTE: 29 

LAND 

The Company's title to acres oflease-hold in Perinaad for 
nine years from 08.03.1906, by the Company by document dated 
23.01.1 is 

an extent of322 acres in actual po:sse~;S!CIl1 absolute owners 
of tenure under the of the Ketala 

disputed certain persons, to be on behalf of the 
erstwhile lessors. Out of 432 acres, the 
1970s 
of the property by virtue 
Land Reforms Act. The maner was pending before the 

pending finalisation of the issue of tenure"under the 
Kerala Land Reforms Act the Land Tribuna! The Land 
Tribunal vide order No. RC-3/07 dated 27-0ct-2012 held that since the 
company is rubber is entitled to fixity of tenure 
and the tribunal has forwarded its findings to the Sub COLIrt. The Sub-Com 

and upheld the 

Caul'[ of Kerala and the 
case is yet to be heard. 

has dismissed the claim of the 
the order ofthe Sub-Court. the 

2,152.15 

3,89,083.50 

533.11 

533.11 

46.18 

52.61 

Nil 

17.82 

Nil 

3,89,083.50 

957.20 

957.20 

46.18 

Nil 

Nil 

15.80 

Nil 
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c NS S 

Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rupees in Laldls in Lakhs 

SEGMENT REPORTING 

relate to Plantation
nnpr'cn-IAn<:: of the 
busilless segment and therefore no separate 
 is made. 

NOTE: 31 

DEFERRED TAX ASSET 

Tax of difference between amount of Fixed Assets in (he 
Financial Statements and the Income Tax returns 32.51 

in the financial statements but allowable as 
deduction in future years under Income Tax 27.31 23.11 

Less: Deferred tax liability - Diminution in Value of the Investment 8.04 0.69 

Net Deferred Tax Asset 51.78 68.41 

Tax 
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

i) Defined Benefit Plans 

a) defined benefit plan: 


i) 

)p<rrinti"" of the 

ura(wt:y Scheme 


This is funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees 

the Company makes contribution to the Gratuit:y Fund 

the Life Insurance Corporation of India. The scheme 

ot()Vl<:1es for a lumpsum payment to vested employees at retirement, 

death while in employment or on termination of employment. 


of five years of service. 

ii) Leave Encashment: 


The company also operates a non funded leave encashment scheme for 

its 


b) 
 in the Present Value ofObligation: 

As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022 

Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave 
Encashment Encashment 

(Funded Plan) (Non Funded Plan) Funded 

as on 1.04.2022 1,069.81 14.56 1,135.79 21.18 

Current Service Cost 66.76 3.68 72.16 3.19 

Interest Cost 73.08 1.03 67.58 1.34 

Benefits Paid (80.82) (1 

Actuarial loss I 12) (11.15) 

Presen t Value of the Oblie:ation as on 31.03.2023 1,110.20 17.15 14.56 

Presen t Value of the 

Reconciliation of chan2:es in the fair 

value of Plan Assets 


Fair Value of Plan Assets on 1.04.2022 806.07 Nil 816.15 Nil 

54.48 Nil 49.49 Nil 

3.48 Nil 66.87 Nil 
(80.82) Nil (132.93) Nil 

0.59 Nil 6.49 Nil 

783.80 Nil 806.07 Nil 

for 

Reconciliation 

of Plan Assets as on 31.03.2023 
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C O NSOL IDAT ED N OT ES O N ACCOUNTS 
for the year ended 31st March 2023 (contd.) 

As on 31.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022 

Gratuity Leave Gratuiry Leave 
Encashment Encashment 

(Funded Plan) (Non Funded Plan) (Funded Plan) (Non Funded Plan) 

NOTE: 32 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.) 

d) The total expense recognised in the Profit and 
Loss Account is as follows 

Current Service Cost 66.76 3.68 72.16 3.19 

Interest Cost 73.08 1.03 67.58 1.34 

Expected return on plan asse ts (54.48) NA (49.49) NA 

Net Actuarial (gain) / loss recognised in the year (19.22) (2.12) (79.28) (l1.1 5) 

66.14 2.59 10.97 (6.62) 

e) Reconciliation of Net Liability recognised 
in the Balance Sheet 

Net Liability as at the beginning of the year 263. 74 14.56 319.64 21.18 

Add: Expense as (d) above 66.14 2.59 10.97 (6.62) 

Less: Employers Contribution / Payment 3.48 66.87 

Net Liability as at the end of the year 326.40 17.15 263.74 14.56 

f) Constitution of Plan Assets 

Investments in LIC Group Gratuity Scheme 783.80 N.A. 806.07 N.A 

g) Principal actuarial assumptions used as at the 
Balance Shee[ Date 

Discount Rate 7.29% 7.29% 7.10% 7.10% 

Salary Escalation Rate 3.50% 3.50% 4.00% 4.00% 

Attrition Rate 4.00% 4.00% 5.00% 5.00% 

Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.29% NA 7. 10% NA 

The estimates offuture salary increases, considered in acturial valuation, take account 
of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevent factors such as demand and 
supply in the employment market. 
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NOTE: 32 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Contd.) 


h) The amount to defined benefit are as follows: 

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 31.03.2019 

funded 

Defined Benefit Obligation 1,110.20 1,069.81 1,135.80 1,015.52 989.65 

Plan Assets 783.80 806.07 816.15 805.99 

Surplusl(Deficit) (326.40) 

adjustment 

(31 (1 

Plan Liability (1 52.30 (33.01) 46.74 

- Plan Assets 0.59 6.49 0.70 (4.29) 0.39 

The Company expects to fund R'i. 100 lakhs towards irs Gratuity Plan during the year 2023-2024. 

ii) Defined Contribution Plans: 

The makes contribution towards provident 
pension fund, super annuation fund. Under the rules ofthese 
is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs. The Company 
during the year R'i. 158.271-lakhs as expense towards contributions to 
these 

the '-Allllpany 
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NOTE: 33 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Following associate companies are related to the Company 
on account of common control through constitution of 
Board I Shareholdings 

- A VThomas & Co. Ltd. 

A V Thomas International Ltd. 
A VThomas Investments Company Ltd. 
The Nelliampathy Tea & Produce Co. Ltd. 

- Neelamalai Agro Industries Ltd 
- A VT Natural Products Ltd. 
- A VT McCormick Private Ltd. 

Educational & BenevolenrTrust 
AVr Natural S.A DE C.V 
Grover Ltd 

Managmenr Personnel : 

- AVr Private Ltd 

- A VThomas Leather and Allied Products Pvt. Ltd. 
AVThomas Exports Ltd. 
Midland Latex Products Ltd. Strike 
Aspera Logistics Private Ltd. 

- Midland Services Ltd 
- AVT Gavia Foods Private Ltd 
- Midland 

Provision Value Gard Private Ltd 

Mr. Chairman 

Year 31.03.2022Year ended 31.03.2023 

AssociatesDetails of Transaction 
Personnel 

INCOME 
Sales 
Dividend Received 

EXPENDITURE 
Purchase I Warehousmg 

Fees 

Professional Fee 

OTHERS 

BAIANCE AS ON 31.03.2023 
Debit 

707.36 

8.261 
0.70 

397.08 
60.00 I 

35.75 
5.00 I 

3,006.53 
614.00 

3.84 
0.70 

238.21 

26.20 
6.00 

31.98 
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NOTE: 34 

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 

The investment held with Mis The 

lakhs 

and Produce Company Limited situated at Chennai was sold 
during the Financial Year 2021-22 (ie Previous year) as per of the Board Resolution No. 003 dated 26th ADril 2021. The 
property was sold 011 28th 2021 for a profit ofR<;. 

Sale Consideration 1.50 

Book value and Expenditure in relation to sale 

Net profit on sale of investment property 566.04 

NOTE: 35 

DEPRECIATION 

Particulars 

Investmen t Property 

223.06 

The 

NOTE 36 

THE CODE ON SOCIAL 2020 

The Social Security Code Benefit during and post employment benefit received 
assent in September 2020 

The Code has been UUll~ll"U in the Gazzette ofIndia. HO\JVPvpr date on which the Code will come into effect has not been 
notified. 

assess the of the code when it comes into effect. 

NOTE 38 

Previous Year's figures have been wherever necessary 

NOTE-39 

DMDENO 

'fhe Board ofDirecrors in its 
is 

on 9th August 2023 have proposed a dividend ofRs. 501- per Equity Share for financial year 
ended March 31, 2023. The to the approval ofShare holders at the Annual General Meetine: to be held on 

September 2023 and would result in a cash Out flow Rs. 1 Lacs. 
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Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Rupees in Lakhs Rupees in Lakhs 

NOTE: 40 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY EXPENDITURE 

to be spent as per Section 135 of the Act 

Amount spent during the year on: 

Amount 

(i) Construction I ofan asset 

On purposes other than (i) above 


Total Amount spent 


Shortfall at the end of the year 


Nature ofCSR activities 

Health Care 

Measures for inequalities faced socially and 
backward group 

has not crossed the limit as mentioned in Section 135 of 
Act, there is no CSR requirement the financial year. 

Nil 


Nil 


Nil 


Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

7.62 

Nil 

7.64 

7.64 

Nil 

0.64 

7.00 

7.64 
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ecug!1l><CU Provision for Income 

UNTS 

NOTE 41 
The has elected exercise the oflower tax rate as per section 11SBAA and has 

Tax for the year ended March 31, 2023 and remeasured Deferred Tax Assets at the lower tax rate n,pcrr;h"ri 

: 42 

OTHER NOTES 

Additional Regulatory Information as under Schedule III Division I ofCompanies Act,20 13 

(i) does not hold Benami have been initiated or against the company for 
holding any benami property the Benami Transactions of 1988) the rules made thereunder. 

Oi) The is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender in any time the year and 
previous year, 

(iii) struck offunder section 248 of the Act, 2013 or section 560 

(iv) 	 are rf"oi..rf'l"f'rl of Companies within as in the Act, 

has no transactions with 

(v) The confirms that no are material either individually or in the aggregatelhave been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 

foreign the understanding, wherher recorded in othcnvise, that 
shall, whether, directlyor lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 

of the CompanyCUlrimate Beneflciaries")or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

or enti ty, 1l1Clumng 
or otherwise, thaI' Company shall, 

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

been received by the 
whether recorded in 

identified in 
or the like 

(vi) 	 There were no transactions relating to unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as income the yeal 
in the tax assessments under the Income lax Act, 1961. 

has not traded 01' invested in currency or Virtual financial year.(vii) The 

, 

the year there arc no loans or advances made to Promoters, Directors, KMPs and related 

,has from banks on the basis of current assets, The same has been used for the purpose for 
which it was taken, 

(x) Quarterly retums I statements of current filed by the with the banks agreement with books of accounts and 
hence no separate disclosure made for reason 


The has complied with Sec 2(87) of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 for tht' 

investments made oy the Company, 


(xii) 	 AJ I title deeds of immovable properties in the name of the company. 

Place: 
Date: 

Firm's No. 0042835 

No. 219922 

Vide our report ofeven date attached 

For SURI & CO, For and on behalf of the Board ofDirectors 
Chartered Accountants 

S. Ganesan 	 Ajit Thomas 
Director Chairman 

DIN : 08588380 DIN· 00018691 
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I 
I 
I THE MIDLAND RUBBER & PRODUCE COMPANY LIMITED 
I Registered. Office : 27/1032, Panampilly Nagar, Kochi, Ernakulam - 682 036 

*
CorporateIdentity Number (CIN): U25191 KLl937PLC000691 Telephone: 0484 - 23 15312, Fax: 0484- 2312541 

E-mail: secmidland@avtplantations.co.in 


ATTENDANCE SLIP 


I hereby rccord my presence at the 86'h Annual Gencral Meeting of the Company at 11.00 A. M. on Saturday, the 
30th September, 2023 at the Registered Office of the Company at 27 /1032, Panampilly Nagar. Ernakulam, Kochi - 682036. 

Folio No. 

Full Name of the *Shareholderlproxy (in block letters) Signature of*Shareholder/proxy 

* Strike out whichever is not appli cable 
E-luail ID ........ ..... ...... .............................. ...... ............... ........... ...... .. . 

NOTE: Shareholders at tending rhe meeting in Person / Proxy are requested to complete the Arrendance Slip and handover at the entrance 

of the Meeting Hall. 

Form No. MGT-II 


Proxy Form 


[Pursua nt to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014J 


Corporate Identity Number (CIN) UL25191 KLI937PLC000691 

Name of the Company THE MIDLAND RUBBER & PRODUCE COMPANY LIMITED 
Registered Office 27/1032, Panampilly Nagar, Kochi, Ernakulam - 682 036 

Name of the member(s) 

Registered address 

E-mailID 

Folio No 

I 1We, being the member(s) holding .... ............... ... ...... ... .. ... shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint 

I.Name ............... ... .............................. ...... .... .. .......... ...... ... .... ............ .... .................. .......... .... .......................... .. .. ...... ............... ....... ........ .. .. . 

Address ............... ........ ..... .... ..... ....... .. ................ .. ... ................. .......... ...... ........ .... ................. ... ................ ............. .. .. ...... .... ..... ........................ . 

E-luail Id : ................... ... ... ......... .. ...... ..................... ..... ....... Signature : ............ .......................... .... .... .... ... ...... .. ............. ... or failing him 

2.Name ...... ........ .. ...... ............... .. .. ... ....... ... ....... ..... ... .. ............... ....... ............ ........... ...... .... .......... .. ... ............ .... ....... ..... ..................... .... ....... . 

Address .......... .......... .. .... ....... ... .. ..... .... ................... .... ...... ............ ..... .......... ... ... ... ......... ......... .... ..... .... ... ........ ............... ...... ............................. . 

E-mail Id : .................................................................... ....... Signature : ... ...... .. .. .... ............ ............... ....... .. ......... .. ...... ....... or failing him 

3.Name .... ...... ... ..... ... ..... .. ... .......... ... ... ................ ... ............ .. .............. .. ...... .......... .......... .......... ............................... .... ............................ ..... . . 

Address.. .......... ................. ..... ................................................................ ... ..... ... ................... .................. ............... ............. .... .... ............... ....... . 


E-mail Id : ...... .............. ... ........ ..... ... ...... ...... .......... ....... .. .....Signature: ...... .... ..... ... .... ........ ......... .......... .. ... .................... ....... .... ....... .... ....... . 


as my lour proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me 1 us and on my lour behalf at the 86'h Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, to be held on Saturday, the 30th day of September, 2023 at 11.00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company at 
27/1032, Panampilly Nagar, Ernakulam, Kochi - 682 036 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are 
indicated below: 

Resolution Item Nos. 

I . Adoption of financial statemen ts (including consolidated financial statements) for the year ended 3 1.03.2023 
2. Declaration ofFinal Dividend on Equity Shares. 
3. Re-appointtnent of Mr. R. Venugopalan as Director 
4. Re-appointment of Mr. A. D. Bopana as Director 
5. Adoption of new set of Articles ofAssociation of the company in line with Companies Act, 2013 

W 
Revenuel' Signed this ............ ... day of.. ............ .......... 2023 
 Stamp of

I Re JI-Signature ofshareholder
I 

Signature of Proxy holder(s)I 
I Note: This form of proxy ill order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited ar the Regis tered Office of the Company, not less 

I than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 


I 

I 

I 
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EIGHTY SIXTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 


Day Saturday 

Date 30th September 2023 

Time 11.00 a.m. 

Venue The Midland Rubber & Produce Co. Ltd. 
27/1032, Panampilly Nagar, Kochi 
Ernakulam - 682 036 
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